120

(f) Tax charge for the year: $427,000. Since retained profit has been credited with
group profit before tax in (c), it must now be debited with the group tax charge

for the year. The other entry is to credit the tax payable and deferred tax accounts.
This is entered in the worksheet as:

Dr Retained profit

427,000
Cr Tax payable 327,000
Cr Deferred tax 100,000

(g) Share of tax of associate: $40,000. Under equity accounting, the investment
account balance is increased by the group’s share of the associate’s after-tax
profit. Thus, after the investment account balance is increased by the group’s
share of associate’s profit before tax (see (e)), the investment account should be
credited with the group’s share of the associate’s tax. The debit entry is against
the retained profit account. This is because (as mentioned in (c)) retained profit
was increased by the profit before tax (which includes the share of the associate’s

profit before tax). It must now be debited with the group’s share of the associate’s
tax. These are entered in the worksheet as:
Dr Retained profit 40,000

Cr Investment 40,000

(h) Non-controlling interest in the current year’s profit: $164,000. This decreases the
amount of the group’s retained profitand increases non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary’s net assets. This item is entered in the worksheet as:

Dr Retained profit 164,000

Cr Non-controlling interest 164,000

Dividend appropriation: $100,000. As the result of (c), (f), (g) and (h), the retained
profit account has been credited with the group after-tax profit. However, ihe
retained profit account is increased by the group’s share of the year's\retazned
profit only. Therefore, dividend appropriation has to be deducted from retained

profit. The other entry is to credit to dividend payable account. This'item is
entered in the worksheet as:

(i

R

Dr Retained profit
Cr Dividend payable

100,000
100,000

(j) Purchase of machinery: $650,000. This is the balancing figure in the machinery
account in the worksheet (2,265 + 500 — 700 — 445 + X = 2,270). Since there is no
disposal of non-current assets, it can be inferred that the balancing figure is the
cost of purchase during the year. This item is entered in the worksheet as:

Dr Machinery 650,000

Cr Investing activities 650,000
(k) Dividend received from associated company: $20,000. This is the balancing
figure in the investment in the associated company account in the worksheet
(240 + 100 — 40 — X = 280). It can be inferred that the balancing figure is the
amount of dividend received from the associated company. This is because under

FRS 7 Statement of Cash Flows
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i t of
ity accounting, the investment account balance is reduced by the amount ¢
Zcil;lidinds received. This item is entered in the worksheet as:

Dr Investing activities 20,000

20,000
Cr Investment

isi i i i ble account in
ax: $87,000. This is the balancing figure in the tax paya
® Paynrle?lisqfet;: (.1$480 4 327 — 20 — X = 360). It can be 'mferrled that the compan.y has
thaeic‘l/\ t(;x of $87,000 during the year. This item is entered in the worksheet as:
P : .

Dr Tax payable 87,000

87,000
Cr Operating activities

ivi is i ing ficure in the dividend
f dividend: $100,000. This is the balancing fig :
(m) Payiﬁg ta(?co;;l in the worksheet (100 + 100 — X = 100). It can .bEf mfep:ed t]jat dthe
}cjggivany has paid a dividend of $100,000 during the year. This item is entered in
the worksheet as:

Dr Diividend payable 100,000

iti 100,000
C1 Financing activities

(n) (Payment of dividend to non-controlling interest: $20,00?. }11"111? ;;Dtghi ?gﬁcﬁi
/ ing inter in the workshee
in the non-controlling interest accour_1t in t . .
il ;r: 191;3) Tt can be inferred that the submd@ry companies h_eiv_e pal_d $2?£22
- dividends to non-controlling shareholders during the year. This item is en
in the worksheet as:

Dr Non-controlling interest 20,000

[ 20,000
Cr Financing activities

is i i The increase in
i k: $600,000. This is the net change in stock_balances. ‘
- ggﬁiﬁz;:tt]{ﬁtpirt of the funds from operation is tied up instock and coniequ r—_n‘tly
cash inflow from operating activities is reduced. It is entered in the worksheet as:
Dr Stock 600,000 400000
Cr Operating activities 3

(p) Increase in trade debtors: $150,000. This is tl'fle ngt cfhange in dc;btﬁribgézn;;sggzﬁ
i se i operation is
se in debtors means that part of the funds rom operation 1 |
?ecgf(?rs and consequently cash inflow from operating activities 15 reduced. Tt is
entered in the worksheet as:

Dr Debtors
Cr Operating activities

150,000
150,000

(q) Increase in creditors: $320,000. This is the net change in credit(}?fs bﬁlancei.b};lgs

: increase in creditors means that part of the purchases for the _pferfqd 2; nod 3
paid for and consequently cash outflow from operating activities 1s reduced.
entered in the worksheet as:

Dr Operating activities 320,000

320,000
Cr Creditors

A Practical Guide to Financial Reporting Standards (Singapore)
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() ilét:gl;?]ge in cash: $540,0_OO._Th isis tbe net change_s in ‘the cash and cash equivalenits ) Disposal of subsidiary
worksh)e;c;gunts. This is the final reconciling item and is entered in the During the year, the group disposed of one of its subsidiaries, 5 Ltd. The effects
: of the disposal are as follows: ‘
Dr Cash 540,000 $'000
Cr Increase in cash f ‘
ca | 540,000 Net assets disposed off
Based on the data gathered in the lower portion of the worksheet, the consolidated Fixed assets 70
statement of cash flows for C Litd group for the year ended 31 December 20x8 (where ixe -
the cash flows from operating activities are reported using the “indirect method”) Long-term loan f1o0) i
may be presented as follows: S Stock MR
C Ltd group Trade debtors 50
Consolidated statement of cash flows e credit U
for the year ended 31 Decernber 2028 Trade ereditors 20
Tax payable (20)
$°000 20 |
. . Cash U
Cash flows from operating activities ] : 700
: ' 2 Disposal price
Profit before tax 1,182 =
Add/(less . ’ Less cash of S Ltd
ess) TloTl—cas items Casn flow on disposal o= 00
Depreciation 445
Share of profit of associate (100) (3} Acquisition of subsidiary
Add/(less) changes in working capital During the year, the group acquired a subsidiary, T Ltd. The effects of the
Stock (600) acquisition are as follows: l
Debtors (150) $7000
Creditors 320 ! \ Land 500
Payment of tax 87 Minority interest 100
Net cash from operating activities 1079 Cash flow on acquisition 400

Cash flows from investing activities T
Disposal of subsidiary 680 Notes to the solution
Acquisiti i i

cquisition of su]:?s1d1ary (400) (1) The effect of the disposal of subsidiary is presented in the consolidated statement
Purchase of machinery (650) of cash flows as a single line item as “Disposal of subsidiary $680,000”. The
Dividends received from associate 20 amount of $680,000 is arrived at after netting off the $20,00Q cash of the subsidiary
Net cash used in investing activities 350 disposed of with the $700,000 cash received as disposal price.

Cash flows from financing activities (2) The effect of the acquisition of subsidiary is presented in the consoli_de_ited
Payment of dividend (100) statement of cash flows as a single line item as “Acquisition of subsidiary
Payment of dividend to non-controlling interests (20) $400,000".

Net cash from financing activities 120 (3) The effect of non-controlling interest on group c_as.h is presented in _the

Net increase in C&CE 540 consolidated statement of cash flows as “Payment of dividend to non-controlling

C&CE at 1 January 20x8 o4 SRRt OG0

C&CE at 31 December 20x8 634 (4) The effect of the associate in group cash is presented in the consolidated

statement of cash flows as “Dividend from associate: $20,000”. The profit before
Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows tax includes the group’s share of the associate’s profit before tax. Therefore,
: under the “indirect method”, the share of the associate’s profit is deducted from
(1) Cash and cash equivalents the profit before tax.
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balances with banks.
17-630 © 2018 CCH Asia Pte Limited A Practical Guide to Financial Reporting Standards (Singapore) 97-630
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128 FRS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

18-300 Changes in accounting policies

A change in accounting policy involves a change from one generally accepted
accounting principle (GAAP) to another.

Thus, the following are not to be accounted for as changes in accounting policies:
® achange from a non-GAAP to a GAAP (this is a correction of error)
¢ the adoption of a new GAAP for a new transaction or event (para 16), and

® achange from one GAAP to another as a result of a change in estimate (thig
should be treated as a change in estimate)

Also, while changing the measurement basis for fixed assets from cost to revaluation
is a change in accounting policy, it should be dealt with in accordance with FRS
16 Property, Plant and Equipment. Similarly, changing the measurement basis for
intangible assets from cost to revaluation is a change in accounting policy but it is
dealt with in accordance with FRS 38 Intangible Assets. Therefore, the provisions of
FRS 8 are not applicable to these changes in accounting policy (para 17).

Consistency is one of the fundamental accounting assumptions underlying the

preparation of financial statements. It is therefore general practice not to change
accounting policy.

There may be circumstances, however, that necessitate /warrant a change ‘in
accounting policy. FRS 8 provides that a change in accounting policy shouia be
made only if the change (para 14):

® is required by a FRS or an INT FRS, or

¢ will result in the financial statements providing reliable and ‘maore relevant
information.

FRS 8 provides that changes in accounting policy should be accounted for as
follows:

¢ For a change in accounting policy necessitated by the initial adoption of a
new accounting standard, the change should be accounted in accordance

with the specific transitional provisions, if any, of that accounting standard
(para 19(a))

For a change in accounting policy under other circumstances (and for cases
where the new accounting standard does not contain transitional provisions)
FRS 8 requires that it should be accounted for retrospectively (para 19(b))

For a change in accounting policy where it is impracticable to determine the

cumulative effect, FRS 8 allows the change to be accounted for prospectively
(para 25 and 27).

’
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ERS 8, itis “impracticable” to determine the cumulative effect if: (i) Fhe effects
- t osl. ective application are not determinable even after making every
g rlilr e§ort to do so, (ii) the retrospective application requires assumptions
ime ement’s intent in that period, or (iii) the retrospective appllgatlon
L ma?qagiﬁcant estimates of amounts and it is impossible to separate estimate
Feqmrestf 1%1nthat existed at point of retrospective application and that wogld have
;ﬁorizl\?ai?able at the point when the financial statements for that prior period were

ee
issued (para 5)-

FRS 8 requires that when there is a change in accounting policy, the nature, reason
and effect of the change be disclosed (para 28 and 29).

Specifically, for a change h:t.accountin:g Policy neé:egssitate.d lzyt lfeljflzlslozi ;I;Tt fl;i
(and which contains tlran51t1011al provisions), FR . f}qmre o)
disclosed, where applicable and to the extent practicable (para 28):
e The titie bf the FRS or INT FRS o
e Tliefact that the change in accounting policy is made in accordance with its
transitional provision
2. The nature of the change in accounting policy
® A description of the transitional provision ‘
e The transitional provision that might have an effect on future periods
e The amount of the adjustment for each affected line item in the current year
and prior year financial statements '
® The amount of adjustment on basic and diluted earnings per share figures of
current and prior period presented
¢ The amount of the adjustment relating to periods before those presented
® [f retrospective application is impracticable, t_he reason Why,l.anci1 a;
description of how and from when the change in accounting policy ha
been applied.
For a voluntary change in accounting policy, FRSlS requires the fo]lowi:ng to be
disclosed, where applicable and to the extent practicable (para 29):
® the nature of the change in accounting policy
® the reason why applying the new accounting policy provides reliable and
more relevant information
® the amount of the adjustment for each affected line item in the current year
and prior year financial statements _
® the amount of adjustment on basic and diluted earnings per share figures of
current and prior period presented
® the amount of the adjustment relating to periods before those presented

98-300
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® if retrospective application is impracticable, the reason why, and 4

description of how and from when the change in accounting policy hag
been applied.

Where an entity has not applied a new FRS or INT FRS that has been issued but
is not yet operative, FRS 8 requires the entity to disclose the fact and information

relevant to assessing the possible impact of the new standard on the entity’s
financial statements in the period of initial application (para 30)

Specifically, FRS 8 requires the entity to consider disclosing the following (para 31);
® The title of the new standard

¢ The nature of the impending change in accounting policy

® The official operative date of the new standard

¢ The date at which the entity plans to apply the new standard, and

Either a discussion of the impact the initial application of the new standard
is expected to have on the entity’s financial statements or a statement to the
effect that the impact is not known or cannot be reasonably estimated.

18-310 Retrospective method

Under the “retrospective” method of accounting for a change in accounting policy,
the cumulative effect of the change is computed and reported as an adjustment
to the beginning retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity. Also,

the comparative information in respect of prior years, which is included in the
financial statements, should be amended.

The adjustment to the beginning retained earnings and the amendment to the
comparative figures are made on the basis that the new accounting\policy is
assumed to have been adopted since the first day of the related transacton.

The following example illustrates the application of the retrospeciive method:

lNustration 2

ABC Ltd (the Company) adopts 31 December accounting year ends. In January 2001,
the Company purchased a factory for investment purposes at a cost of $5 million.

In compliance with FRS 25 Accounting for Investments (that has since been superseded),
the factory has been accounted for at cost without depreciation.

Anew accounting standard, FRS 40 Investment Property, has been

issued to supersede
FRS 25 ettective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 J

anuary 2007.

Thus, for its annual financial years beginning 1 January 2007, the Company has to
apply FRS 40 to account for the factory. The Company decided to adopt the “cost
model” under FRS 40. For depreciation of the factory, the Company decided to adopt
the straight line method of depreciation, based on an estimated useful life of 50 years
with no salvage value. FRS 40 requires the transition to the cost model to be accounted
for retrospectively in accordance with the provisions of FRS 8.

98-310
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Company has agreed with the Inland Revenue Authority of Singapore (IRAS)
e ho Ez]:ctory is outside the scope of the Incorme Tax Act.
i March 2008, the assistant accountant of the company, who was not awiﬁe
i are in ac;:ounting policy, prepared the 2007 finanaal_ sta?ements of the
i t};faji??;gshown below (with 2006 published data as comparative figures).
com

Income statements

2007 2006
$’000 $000
900 600
Revenue o -
Less expenses o b
Less finance costs o -
Profit before tax ” »
Less tax
170
Profitofter tax - 205
Retaingd earnings (in statement of changes in equity) o
Calance as at 1 January 2006 0
rrofit for the year 2006 .
Balance as at 31 December 2006 i
| Profit for the year 2007 o
Balance as at 31 December 2007
Balance sheets . o
Fixed assets 5,000 S,GOU
Investment property ,800 ,400
Other net current asset e =
6,000
Share capital 6,[7)22 —
Retained earnings N o
Bank loans = e

The 2007 financial statements of the company were expected to be issued on 30
March 2008.

Solution

i ve i licy up to 1 January
ulate the cumulative effect of the change in accounting po .
ggé; (:ﬂed aiso that up to 1 January 2006 for the purpose of amendu‘tagl the 2(1(3))6
financial statements presented as comparative figures in the 2007Uannu reports).
The cumulative effect is the depreciation charge per year of $100,000.

Cumulative effect as at 1 January 2006: $100,000 x 5
= $500,000

Cumulative effect as at 1 January 2007: $100,000 % 6
= $600,000

A Practical Guide to Financial Reporting Standards (Singapore)
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The i ed i . . .

fO]{*OJWm;_maI entry required in 2007 to record the change in accounting policy is as [n the notes to the accounts, the nature, reason and effect of the change in accounting
| B, . policy may be disclosed as follows: |
Dr Beginning retained earnings 600,000 - . )
Cr Accumulated depreciation 600,000 Note 3. Change in accounting policy ‘
(to account for the cumulati Hoctof . ; . 4 During the year, the investment property has been changed to comply with the cost
January 2007) ulative effect of change in accounting policy up to 1 model under FRS 40. The change has been accounted for retrospectively. The effect of

. the change in 2007 and 2006 financial statements are as follows: |
The income statement for the year ended 31 December 2007 (with 2006 account as

comparatives) will be presented as follows: 2007 2006
2007 2006 $7000 $000 ‘
. $°000 %000 Increase in depreciation expense 100 100
Levmue 900 600 Decrease in profit after tax 100 100 ‘
ess expenses
Less ﬁnzntzcs i 600 370 Decrease in investment property 700 600
¢ costs 150 130 s :
ot T ‘E —100 Decrease inwatained profit 700 600 ‘
Less t 3
Pesztaa;t . 45 __ 30 Notes to the solution |
ro er tax
. . . . S (1) The ‘cumulative effect of the change is accounted for as an adjustment to the
Retained earnings (in statement of changes in equity) beginning retained earnings. |
$°000 (1) The 2006 financial statements that are presented as comparative figures in the
Balance at 1 January 2006 2007 annual reports have been amended as if the new policy had been used then.
; The 2006 financial statements as presented in the 2006 annual report are not
A p P
C;P rev1::)usly state.d _ 400 ( amended, as there is no such statutory requirement in Singapore. ‘
AngE In.accounting policy 500 ; (3) The net effect of the retrospective application is that the financial statements (of
As restated (100) < the current year and of all prior years which are presented as comparative figures) |
Profit for year 2006 (restated) 7 will be presented as if the new policy had been in used then. For example, the
Balance at 31 December 2006 N\ carrying amounts of the investment property are presented in the 2006 and 2007
Profit (30 balance sheets as if the cost model has been adopted from the date the investment I
BTO it for year 2007 105 property was acquired in January 2001.
alance at 31 D \
el 200 75 An illustration of the disclosure of a change in accounting policy which has been ‘
The balance sheet as at 31 December 2007 (with 2006 balance sheet-4a tomparative accounted for using the “retrospective method” is extracted from the notes to accounts
figures) will be presented as follows: in the 2002 Anmnual Report of Keppel Land Lid and shown as follows: ‘
2007 2006 Notes to accounts
. %000 $'000 Change in accounting policy ‘
Fixed assets 3,200 2,600 With effect from 1 January 2002, the Group changed its accounting policy with respect .
Investment property 4,300 4,400 to the treatment of deferred taxation in order to conform with the new requirements
Net current asset 800 | ' of Statement of Accounting Standard (S3AS) 12 on income taxes. In the previous year, I
—_— 400 taxation expense excluded the tax effects of certain timing differences when there
) _ 8300 7,400 was reasonable evidence that these timing differences would not reverse for some ‘
Share capital 6.000 considerable period ahead. Under the revised SAS 12, taxation expense had been
. , 6,000 b P
Retained earnings/losses 5 (30) provided by the Group using the liability method on all temporary differences.
Bank loans 2205 1.430 The change in accounting policy resulted in a prior year charge to retained profit
e — (RP) as at 31 December 2001 amounting to $35,059,000 for the Group and $9,377,000
8,300 7,400 for the Company. Taxation expense for 2002 for the Group increased by $2,509,000
;(2001: $2,751,000), and for the Company increased by $619,000 (2001: $321,000).
8-310
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78-320 Prospective method

As provided for in FRS 8, a change in accounting policy is accounted for using the

prospective method if it is impracticable to determine the cumulative effect of the
change.

Under FRS 8, it is “impracticable” to determine the cumulative effect if the effects

of the retrospective application are not determinable even after making every
reasonable effort to do so (para 5).

Under the “prospective” method, the effect of the change is accounted for in the
current period. No attempt is made to account for the “cumulative effect” of the
change on the comparative figures in, the prior period’s financial statements.

The following example illustrates the application of the prospective method:

llustration 3

XYZ Ltd (with 31 December accounting year ends) purchased a building in early 20x1

at a cost of $100 million and depreciated the building using the straight line method
over 50 years, commencing from 20x1.

In 20x5, XYZ Ltd changed its depreciation policy so as to apply the component
approach as required by FRS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment.

Under the component approach, XYZ Ltd will have to separately depreciate the
building, the escalator and the other fixtures.

An engineering study shows that as at 1 January 20x5, the building, together with
its other components, has a market value that is equal to its carrying amount. ¢t
$92 million. However, further analysis indicates that the building has a market valie
of $69 million and a remaining useful life of 46 years, the escalator has a marl-et 7alue
of $13 million and a remaining useful life of 10 vears and the other fixtures have a
market value of $10 million and remaining life of five years.

XYZ Ltd has not kept detailed accounts of its fixed assets and it i impracticable
for XYZ Ltd to determine the respective costs and A/D amounts for the building,
escalator and other fixtures if the component approach has been adopted since 20x1.

Inthis case, XYZ Ltd will have to account for the changein accounting policy prospectively.

Under the prospective method, no change is made to the prior years’ figures. The effect
of the change in accounting policy will be accounted for only from 20x5 onwards.

Thus, while from 20x1 to 20x4, the annual depreciation charge is $2 million
($100 million + 50 years), the depreciation charge for 20x5 will be $4.8 million
[($69 million + 46 years) + ($13 million < 10) + ($10 million + 5)].

The nature, reason and effect of the change in accounting policy may be disclosed as
follows:

Note 12 Change in accounting policy

Previously the cost of the whole building has been depreciated as a single item using
the straight line method over 50 years. In 20x5, FRS 16 comes into effect and requires
the component approach. Accordin gly, the depreciation policy for the building

98-320 © 2018 CCH Asia Pte Limited
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F . This change in accounting policy is
;sccczlﬂﬁaeddf:g }ajfcc))s]f;egizlc;r,nzfsoirtui?itriggggggblggsdcete_rr%ﬁne the Cumulagh%e)zliéf‘zzt \
of the change. The effects of the change on the 20x5 financial statements are as fc : | :
$'mil

Increase in depreciation charge 2,800,000 i .
Decrease in profit before tax 2,800,000
Decrease in tax expense 560,000 ‘
Decrease in profit after tax 2,240,000
Decrease in book value of building 2,800,000 | |
Decrease in retained profit 2,240,000 !
Decrease in deferred tax liability 560,000

An illustzation of the disclosure of a change in accounting policy which has |
been aceourited for using the “prospective method” is extracted from the notes

to accounits in the 2002/03 Annual Report of Singapore Airlines Ltd and shown as
foilows (Note: SAS 20 is the predecessor of FRS 21):

Notes to accounts
SAS 20 The effect of changes in foreign exchange rates

The revised SAS 20 came into effect on 1 April 2002. Accordingly, the financial 1-915121t§
of foreign subsidiary, associated and joint venture companies are I}OW trﬁns a (1?
into Singapore dollars at the annual average exchange rates. Previously, ;,uch‘ results
were translated at exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. T efc émgf in
accounting policy was applied prospectively because the financial effect of adopting
the revised SAS 20 was not significant.

CORRECTION OF ERRORS \

€8-400 Correction of Errors |

Errors referred to in FRS 8 are material prior period errors discovered in the current
period that are of such significance that the financial Stat.ernents of one or more \
prior periods can no longer be considered to have jbeen rlehable at thg da’Fe of their |
issue. Such errors include the effects of mathematical mistakes, application of the
wrong accounting policy, misinterpretation of facts, oversights and fraud (para 5).

ERS 8 provides that the correction of errors should be ac.counteci. for retrospech‘vgly
(para 42). However, for a correction of error where it is impracticable to deter]?flme
the cumulative effect, FRS 8 allows the correction to be accounted for prospectively
(para 44 and 45).

A Practical Guide to Financial Reporting Standards (Singapore) 98-400
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31 December 20x4
Dr Depreciation expense 9,308
Cr Accumulated depreciation 9,308

(to record depreciation)

For initial direct costs incurred, FRS 17 provides that the costs that can be identified
as directly attributable to activities performed by the lessee for a finance lease are tp
be included as part of the amount recognised as an asset under the lease (para 24)

917-420 Accounting by lessors

For the lessor, the asset under a finance lease is, in substance, sold to the lessee,
Therefore, FRS 17 provides that an asset held under a finance lease should be
accounted for in the lessor’s books not as a fixed asset but as a receivable (para 36),

RS 17 further requires the receivable to be presented in the statement of financial
position at an amount equal to the “net investment in the lease” (para 36), which is
defined in para 4 as “the gross investment in the lease less unearned finance income”,

In practice, the lease receivable account is normally recorded at an amount equal
to the gross investment in the lease, which is defined in para 4 as “the aggregate of
the minimum lease payments (from the lessor’s viewpoint) plus any unguaranteed
residual value accruing to the lessor”. The unearned finance income (which is
defined in para 4 as “the difference between the lessor’s gross investment in the
lease and its present value”) is recorded and accounted for separately. Atthe end
of each accounting period, the unearned finance income balance is dedwcted from
the lease receivable balance to arrive at an amount which is the net investment in
the lease.

FRS 17 provides that the finance income should be recognisedbased on a pattern
reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the finance lease (para 38). In order to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return, the “effective interest rate” method should be used.

Thus, for a finance lease, the lessor will have to:

® determine the gross investment in the lease (lease receivable) and its PV, so as
to calculate the total amount of interest income to be recognised over the lease
term (difference between the gross investment in the lease and its PV), and

® prepare the amortisation schedule to determine the amount of interest income
to be recognised in each accounting period. It should be noted that, from the
lessor’s perspective, the income effect of a finance lease is just the finance
income recognised in each accounting period. There will be no depreciation
charge, as no fixed asset is recorded.

117-420
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lliustration 12
On1January 20x1, SAW Leasing Ltd leased a piece of machinery to SEE Manufacturing
Ltd. The terms of the lease agreement included: (i) a non-cancellable lease term of
four years with no renewal or purchase option, and (ii) a lease rental of $_10,0DO per
year plus executory costs of $1,000 per year to be paid by SEE Manufacturing Ltd_on
31 December each year, commencing 31 December 20x1. The lease rental (after taking
into account residual value of $7,000 at the end of the lease, which is not guaranteed
by any party) was determined based on a 10% rate of return to SAW_ Leasing Ltd. The
machinery is new on 1 January 20x1 and is expected to have an estimated useful life
of five years. At the end of the lease term, the machinery is to be returned to SAW
Leasing Ltd.
In this case, the lease will be classified as a finance lease as it transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the equipment to the lessee
(because the lease term of four years is for the major part (equals or exceeds 75%) of
the useful life offive years of the equipment).
Thus, SAW Leasing Ltd (the lessor) will have to perform two initial calculations,
namely: (ijgross investment in the lease and its PV, and (ii) the amortisation schedule
for interestincome.

(i) Cxlculation of the gross investment in the lease and its PV:

Gross investment: Ordinary annuity of $10,000 for four periods plus
unguaranteed residual value of $7,000 at the end of the fourth period = $47,000

) Discount rate: 10%
PV: $10,000 x 3.16986 + $7,000 x 0.68301 = $36,480.
(i) Amortisation schedule for finance income of $10,520 ($47,000 — $36,480):

Date Lease Interest Principal Net
paymnient (10%) Investment
$ 5 $ $
1 January 20x1 36,480
31 December 20x1 10,000 3,648 6,352 30,128
31 December 20x2 10,000 3,013 6,987 23,141
31 December 20x3 10,000 2,314 7,686 15,455
31 December 20x4 10,000 1,545 8,455 7,000
Total 10,520

As shown in the amortisation schedule, there will be a net investment of $7,000 at the
end of the lease, which is the residual value of the asset under the lease.

A Practical Guide to Financial Reporting Standards (Singapore)
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each of the four years will be as follows:

1 January 20x1
Dr Lease receivable
Cr Unearned interest income
Cr Machinery
(to record the finance lease)
31 December 20x1
Dr Cash
Cr Executory expenses payable
(to record receipt of executory costs)
Dr Cash
Cr Lease receivable
(to record receipt of lease payment)
Dr Unearned interest income
Cr Interest income
(to recognise interest income)
31 December 20x2
Dr Cash
Cr Executory expenses payable
(to record receipt of executory costs)
Dr Cash
Cr Lease receivable
(to record receipt of lease payment)
Dr Unearned interest income
Cr Interest income
(to recognise interest income)
31 December 20x3
Dr Cash
Cr Executory expenses payable
(to record receipt of executory costs)
Dr Cash
Cr Lease receivable
(to record receipt of lease payment)
Dr Unearned interest income
Cr Interest income
(to recognise interest income)

The journal entries to record the lease in the books of SAW Leasing Ltd (the lessor) for

47,000
10,520
36,480
1,000
1,000
10,000
10,000
3,648
3,648
1,000
1,000
10,000
10,060
3,013
3,013
1,000
1,000
10,000
10,000
2,314
2,314

T17-420
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31 December 20x4
Dr Cash
Cr Executory expenses payable
(to record receipt of executory costs)
Dr Cash
Cr Lease receivable
(to record receipt of lease payment)
Dr Unearned interest income
Cr Interest income
(to recognise interest income)

1,545

At the end of the lease on 31 December 20x4, when the machinery is reverted to SAW
Leasing Ltd, thefollowing journal entry is recorded:

Dr Maghinery 7,000

CrLeage receivable 7,000

= 1llustrate the technicality of the provisions of FRS 17 relating to accounti_ng for
ﬁnance Jease from the lessor’s perspective, the above-mentioned case of a finance
lease between SAW Leasing Ltd and SEE Manufacturing Ltd will be _amended to
include a bargain purchase option, a bargain renewal option and Ifes1dua1. value,
and also amended such that the lease payment is in the form of annuity due instead
of ordinary annuity. Bach of the cases is to be considered independent‘ly. For
simplicity, it is assumed that the implicit rate remains at 10% (unless specifically
stated otherwise) in each of the following cases.

Bargain purchase option

The effects of the existence of a bargain purchase option are that (i) the lease will,
by the fact that there is a bargain purchase option, be classified as ﬁpancg lease,
and (ii) the gross investment in the lease will be increased by the exercise price but
reduced by the residual value which now becomes irrelevant.

llustration 13

To illustrate a case of finance lease with a bargain purchase option, assume that
in the original lease between SAW Leasing Ltd and SEE Manufacturing Ltd in
Nlustration 12 the lease agreement included a clause to give SEE Manufacturing
Ltd (the lessee) an option to buy over the machinery at the end of the four year
lease term for $1,000, and that at the inception of the lease on 1 January 20x1 it was

estimated that the fair market value of the equipment would be about $7,000 after
four years’ usage.
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Where the residual valueis unguaranteed, FRS17 requires that it should berevieweq
regularly. If there is a permanent reduction in the estimated unguaranteed residyg)
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Mustration 17

To illustrate the provision of para 41 of FRS 17, refer to the ori ginal lease between SAW
Leasing Ltd and SEE Manufacturing Ltd in Mustration 12. Assume that on 1 Janua

20x3, due to technological changes, it is estimated that the unguaranteed residual value
will be only $2,300 (instead of the original estimate of $7,000) at the end of the lease term.

Due to the permanent decline in the estimated unguaranteed residual value, FRS 17
requires that the income allocation over the lease term be revised, and the retrospective
effect of the decline be charged to the current year’s P&L account,

$47,000t0 $42,300 (with the net investment {orFV of the machinery) remaining unchanged
at $36,480), the implicit rate of return to the lessor would be reduced. The revised implicit
rate of return is the discount rate that causes the PV of the 81ross investment of $42 300 to
be equal to $36,480. Tt can be determined that the revised implicit rate is 6%,

(i) Calculation of the revised gross investment in the lease and its PV:

Gross investment: Ordinary annuity of $10,000 for four periods plis
unguaranteed residual value of $2,300 at the end of the fourth period = $42,500
Discount rate: %
PV: $10,000 x 3.46511 + $2,300 x 0.79209 = $36,480 (rounded).

(ii) Revised amortisation schedule for finance income of $5,820 (%42 200 $36,480):

Date Lease

Interest Principal Net
payment (6%) Investment
$ $ $ $
1 January 20x1 36,480
31 December 20x1 10,000 2,188 7,812 28,668
31 December 20x2 10,000 1,718 8,282 20,386
31 December 20x3 10,000 1,221 8,779 11,607
31 December 20x4 10,000 693 9,307 2,300

As shown in the revised amortisation schedule, up to 1 January 20x3, a total interest
income of $3,906 ($2,188 in 20x1 + $1,718 in 20x2) should have been recognised.
However, $6,661 ($3,648 for 20x1 + $3,013 for 20x2, see original amortisation schedule
in Mustration 12) of interest income has been recognised as at 1 ]anuary 20x3. Thus,
an adjustment for the cumulative effect of “over-recognition” of interest income of

17420
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count. I

42,755 ($6,661 — $3,906) should be ma(ii]e ail:idbchaggicdectiobt;flgf%(g (I:-(i]lzlititiu; thr;
it ] ivable account shou eI 50 Geaduction
adc_fhtlonathesilgisafi fficlfll; ?rom $7,000 to $2,300), and tl}e unamortlsfedt 1??;1;33; ?ng;g
eslhTit 6’zcher ialance of the “unearned interest in(cg;n;zz A acgﬁogtg;)t) Taﬁ 1?5 ke gﬁnem
s 1,945 (($2,314 + $1,545) - (%1, + ; y atljish t
Shmﬂdlbit{re;l ‘;ggil]:gc? 0;'1 1O]g{nua_ry 20x3 to account for the permanent decline in the
journal e

stimated unguaranteed residual value is as follows:

e

2,755
1,945

Dr Loss on decline in residual value

Dr Unearned interest income -

Cr Lease receivable

Annuity due

ide for the first
i i the lease agreement to provi .
i t un-ommon in practice for Agre _ o
= I:i(i)c leage payments to be made at the begmg of the pe.rllc;d imﬁgrencg
petrﬁo hzn at the end of the period (ordinary annuity). I;imefmma y, fhe difference
AN di ity is that in the former cas

“cn annuity due and ordinary annuity : he lessor
PUW én?:]’ig theylessee for a smaller amount, and, therefore, the finance in
15 111

should correspondingly be reduced.

lllustration 18 | | N
i i ts instead of ordinary annuity payme
e E'llei?}f: (‘:fo\;liﬂ-ilr?;?g:s}é %Z?meggrin SGXW Leasing Ltd and SEE Manufactt:rﬁglgt
L in i mtj 12 tghe lease agreement provides that each annual leagfhpt?l)é et
'Ltd 11"1131111151'(1:’138 {():)l'rll 1 January (instead of 31 December), commencing wi
1Sat?neitn;fl 1 January 20x1 (instead of 31 December 20x1). ensing Lt (he
f )t(h.i e, the lease will still be classified as a finance lease.. SAW eejn;l\lgsmem iR
Sl CaiSll’h ve to perform two initial calculations, namely: (i) gross
}tﬁsesfé:a)lsggnd?ts PV, pand (ii) the amortisation schedule for interest income.

(i) Calculation of the gross investment in the lease and its PV:

5’ ) (8) _fOLL'I: pEI UdS P] su gua a {eed
0ss Investment: A uit due O( $10,00() f T
GIESldLlal \fah]e of B; ,(][]“ at the er d Of the f()urth PerlDd = $4: ,OUO

Discount rate: 10% )
PV: $10,000 x 3.48685 + $7,000 x 0.68301 = $39,650.

917-420
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Date

Lease Interest Principal Net
payment (6%) Investient
$ $ $ $
31 December 20x4 27,295 4,377 22,918 50,040
31 December 20x5 27,295 3,002 24,293 25,747
31 December 20x3 27,295 1,548 25,747 Nil

The journal entries to record the sales-type lease for the first two years are as follows:

1 January 20x2
Dr Lease receivable
Dr Cost of goods sold
Cr Sales
Cr Stock
Cr Unearned interest
31 December 20x?2
Dr Cash
Cr Lease receivable
Dr Unearned interest

136,475
100,000

114,975
100,000
21,500

27,295

27,295

6,898
Cr Interest income

31 December 20x3
Dr Cash
Cr Lease receivable
Dr Unearned interest
Cr Interest income

6,898

27,295

Note that in Tlustration 19, where the fair
computation of the annual |
fair market
$48,375 was

sale price and the cost of sales) and an interest in
gross investment of $148,375).

interest rate was craiged in the
ease payment, the sale was recorded based on the
value of the machinery of $125 000. Consequently, the total profit of
apportioned into a gross profit of $25,000 (difference between the cash

come of $23,375 (a 6% return on

Y7500 =
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i 5i tioned as follows: gross profit
1 profit of $36,475 is consequently appor
Case,tl&;';o(t‘;\ep;duced sale price of $114,475 less the cost of sales of $1 g0,000), and
Oft$1e;3t income of $21,500 (a 6% return on gross investment of $136,475).
inte

may n i % initial direct costs should be

b ted that, in a sales-type lease, the trutial :
. 'seii a: ail expense in the P&L account at the inception of the lease (para 42).
recogni 5

E:o'JtmTS:Wi’ch the reduction in the implicit rate to 3%, the annual lease payment will be

reduced to only $27,295 ($125,000 + 4.57971, which is the PV factor of ordinary
annuity for five periods at 3%).

SALE AND LEASEBACK

€117-608"Sale and leaseback

i i i : 1ls the
A sale‘and leaseback transaction is one in wh_lch the owner of an asset se
agect to another party and immediately leases it back.

In practice sale and leaseback transactions are normally entered inlto by e; Sﬂli;/r
- , - ives a lump

blems. The seller-lessee receiv
jessee to solve cash flow pro . ] o
t;zssalnc_-q proceeds when the asset is sold, but will only need to pay lease re

i intaini i the same asset.
\ periodically under the lease, while maintaining the right to use

917-610 Recognition of gains and losses

The main accounting problems relating to a sale and leaseback transaction are
e
encountered in the seller-lessee’s books.

There are two main issues involved: |

® Where the sale price is fixed at the fair market value, how the profit or loss
(P/L) on the sales transaction should be accounted for, and | »

® Where the sales price is artificially fixed lower 1(:1‘ hilgher tha]ri etfui j:;z I?j;t :i

-or-higher-than-mark ;
lue so as to accommodate a lower-or .
E?)Viethe P/L on the initial sales and subsequent rentalfor 1iasmlg Oli rt;z
i tice, it is common for the sales
asset should be accounted for (in practice, sales price
ifici i i the FV, and the lease rental to

to be artificially fixed, ie not based on A
a?tiﬁcia]ly ﬁxeg, as a package deal, to accommodate the cash flow needs of
the seller-lessee).

Selling price is fixed at fair market value

i the
The treatment for the P/L on the “sales” transaction depends very much on
nature of the leaseback transaction.

117-610
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Dr Deferred gain 200,000
Cr Realised gain 200,000
(to amortise deferred gain over 15 years)
Dr Depreciation expense 1,200,000
Cr Accumulated depreciation 1,200,000
(to record depreciation over 15 years)

FRS 17 merely provides that the deferred gain/loss should be amortised over the
lease term (para 59). It does not prescribe how the amortised gain/loss should be
treated in the statement of P/L and other comprehensive income (OCI) and how
the unamortised balance should be treated in the statement of financial position.

On the other hand, FASB Statement No 13 requires the deferred gain/loss to be
amortised over the life of the leased asset or over the lease term, whichever is more
appropriate. FASB Statement No 13 further provides that the amortised gain/loss
should be treated as an adjustment to the depreciation expense in the statement
of P/L and OCI, and the unamortised deferred gain/loss should be treated as
part of the valuation of the leased asset in the statement of financial position. This

procedure will increase/reduce the depreciation expense and the book value of
the leased asset to the original cost basis.

lustration 23
Refer to the case in Illustration 22.

Under FASB Statement No 13, the 1 January 20x6 journal entries will be the same as
those previously shown, but the 31 December 20x6 journal entries will be as follow.:

31 December 20x6

Dr Lease Liability 566,500

Dr Interest Expense 1,800,000
Cr Cash

2,366,500
(annual lease payment)

Dr Deferred gain 200,000
Cr Depreciation expense
(to amortise deferred gain over 15 years)

Dr Depreciation expense

200,000

1,200,000
Cr Accumulated depreciation

(to record depreciation of leased asset over
15 years)

1,200,000

It may be noted that under FASB Statement No 13, the amount of depreciation expense
charged to the 20x6 statement of P/L and OCI will be $1,000,000 ($1,200,000 — $200,000),
the same amount as it would have been without the sale and leaseback transaction.

T17-610 © 2018 CCH Asia Pte Limited
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i ied i : f financial position at a book
-0, the asset will be carried in the 20x6 statement o
A, E $14.000,000 (capitalised amount of $18,000,000 less A/D of $1,200,000 less
Vil\amcn:tisecl gain of $2,800,000), the same amount as it would have been, without the
;.]ale and leaseback transaction (cost of $20,000,000 less A /D of $6,000,000).

selling price is artificially fixed

i ice is fi ifici - higher than the fair market
the selling price is fixed artificially lower or hig -
‘é\;?jéeso as to acfommodate a lower-or-higher-than-market lease rental, the issue
of recognising the P&L is slightly more complicated.

Operating lease

If the selling price is artificially fixed above the FV to accommodate a higher-than-
market ledse fental, FRS 17 provides that the excess over the FV should be deferred
and ardortised over the period for which the asset is expected to be used (para 61).

Thug, in such a case, the P/L arising fro-m the s_ales ’f.ra_nsaction should ‘tfg
apportioned between two parts: the excess of the selling price over tht:11 Fv shcn.l
be deferred and amortised, and the difference bet‘weexll the FV and the carrying
amount (book value) of the asset should be recognised immediately.

lllustration 24

e that an asset is carried in the books at $70 but has an FV of $100, and that
fir:lz a_nad feaseback transaction the sales price is fixed at $150 to accommodate a
higher-than-market lease payment under the leasebgck.

In this case, out of the profit of $80 (sales price of $150 less book value of }?70): $5‘EJ1
(sales price of $150 less FV of $100) should be deferred and amortised over { e p;.g;o)
for which the asset is expected to be used, and $30 (FV of $100 less boek value o
should be recognised immediately.

v h t of th fit of $30 (sales
If the asset’s book value is $120 (instead of $7Q), then, out of the profit o
prime g; $150 less book value of $120), a profit of $50 (sf”ﬂes price (_)f %150 less FV
of $100) should be deferred and amortised over the period for which the asset is
expected to be used, and a loss of $20 (FV of $100 less book value of $120) should be
recognised immediately. i e

i i i iti fit of $30 would not be in
In this case, simply deferring the recognition of the pro
com;])liance withpp);ra 63 (which provides that a loss equal to the amount of the
difference between the carrying amount and the FV should be_recognlsed immediately
if the FV at the time of the sale and leaseback transaction is less than the carrying
amount of the asset).

T17-610
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Case C

If the asset’s book value is $190, then, out of the loss of $40 (sales price of $150 less
book value of $190), a profit of $50 (sales price of $150 less FV of $100) should be
deferred and amortised over the period for which the asset is expected to be used
under para 61, and a loss of $90 (FV of $100 less book value of $190) should be
recognised immediately under para 63.

On the other hand, if the selling price is artificially fixed at below the FV to
accommodate a lower-than-market lease rental, FRS 17 provides that any P/L
should be deferred and amortised in proportion to the lease payments over the
period for which the asset is expected to be used (para 61).

ERS 17 Leases 289

Appendix to FRS 17

The Appendix of FRS 17 provides a summary of its requirements in respect of
recognising gains and losses arising from sale and leaseback transactions that
result in operating leases.

A sale and leaseback transaction that results in an operating lease may give rise to
profit or a loss, the determination and treatment of which depends on the leased
asset’s carrying amount, FV and selling price. The following table shows the
requirements of the Standard in various circumstances:

: : : i tablished | Carryin Carryin Carrying
Paragraph 61 also provides that if the loss is not compensated by future rentals at gta i:evp(r;i: ZS e am;?l]ntgequal amﬂntgless amount
below the market price, it should be recognised immediately. to FV than FV above FV
Profit No profit Recognise profit | Not
lllustration 25 immediately applicable
Case A Loss No loss Not applicable Recognise
Assume that an asset is carried in the books at $260 but has an FV of $200, and that lii?;ediatel
in a sale and leaseback transaction the sale price is fixed at $100 to accommodate a L Y
lower-than-market lease payment under the leaseback.
In this case, out of the loss of $160 (sales price of $100 less book value of $260), $100 Sale price established | Carrying Carrying Carrying
(sales price of $100 less FV of $200) should be deferred and amortised over the period below FV (para 61) amount equal | amount less amount
for which the asset is expected to be used under para 61, and $60 (FV of $200 less book to FV than FV above FV |
value of $260) should be recognised immed iately under para 63. In this case, deferment : : . . fit!
of the total $160 loss would not be in compliance with the provision of para 63. Profit No profit .RecognnlbL PRt | i |
| immediately
Case B J Loss not contpensated by | Recognise loss | Recognise loss (Note 1)
If the asset’s book value is $160 (instead of $260), then the loss of $60 (sales pricet future lease payments at | immediately immediately
$100 less book value of $160), should be deferred and amortised over the period for “below market price |
which the asset is expected to be used. The profit of $40 (FV of $200 less book value "
of $160) is not recognised. Loss compensated by Defer and Defer and See note 1!
future lease payments at | amortise loss amortise loss
Case C below market price
If the asset’s book value is $60, then the profit of $40 (sales price 01.$100 less book
value of $60) should be recognised immediately. The loss of $100 (sales price of $100 ; : : :
less FV of $2)00) is not recog:rﬁsed. 3 ( P Sale price established | Carrying Carrying amount | Carrying
above FV (para 61) amount equal | less than FV amount
to FV above FV
Finance lease Profit Defer and Defer and Defer and
G . . ti rofit | amortise amortise
Where the leaseback transaction is a finance lease, the whole of the difference amottise prot excess profit? profit
between the sales Proceeds and the carrying amount (book value) should be - No loss No loss (Note 1)!
deferred and amortised over the lease term (para 59).
Note that the provisions of para 63 would not be applicable to finance leases. S—

However, if there has been impairment in the value, which is not temporary in
nature, the carrying value of the asset should be written down to its recoverable
amount, in accordance with the provisions of FRS 36.

1 Note 1: These parts of the table represent circumstances that would have been dealli
with under para 63 of the Standard. Paragraph 63 requires the carrying amount of
an asset to be written down to FV where it is subject to a sale and leasebaclk.

117-610
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Further, para 57 of FRS 17 requires, for assets leased out under operating leases,
the disclosure of:

® the gross carrying amount

& the A/D

the accumulated impairment losses

the depreciation charge for the period

the impairment losses recognised for the period, and
the impairment losses reversed for the period.

Finance leases
For finance leases, FRS 17 requires the lessors to disclose principally an analysis of
the lease receivable and a general description of the lease arrangements.
Specifically, para 45 of FRS 17 requires the disclosure of:

® areconciliation between the gross investment in the lease at the statement of

financial position date and the PV of the minimum lease payments receivable
at the statement of financial position date

the total gross investment in the lease and the PV of the minimum lease

payments receivable at the statement of financial position date, for each of
the following periods:

— Not later than one year

— Later than one year but not more than five years, and

— Later than five years.
unearned finance income
the unguaranteed residual values accruing to the benefit of the leseor
the accumulated allowance for uncollectible lease receivable
contingent rents recognised in income for the period, and
a general description of significant leasing arrangements.

COMPARISON WITH IASB STANDARD

917-800 Comparison with IASB standard

FRS5 17 is based on IAS 17 Leases issued by International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB).

In the past, there was a major difference between FRS 17 and IAS 17. IAS 17
disallowed a leasehold land to be classified as a finance lease unless title passes
to the lessee at the end of the lease term. FRS 17, on the other hand, provided that

leasehold land should be classified as operating or finance lease in the same way
as leases of other assets.

917-800 © 2018 CCH Asia Pte Limited
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In April 2009, IASB amended IAS 17 effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2010 in its “Improvement to IFRS”, under which it deleted the
paragraph that disallowed a leasehold land to be classified as a fl:nance lease unless
title passes to the lessee at the end of the lease term. Thus, effective 1 January 2010,
there were no longer any significant differences between FRS 17 and IAS 17.

APPENDIX A: TWO RELATED STANDARDS

917-900 Appendix A: Two related standards

In accounting for leases, three accounting standards should be considered. Where
there is a lease, both legally and in substance, FRS 17 should be applied; where
there is legally alease, but nota lease in substance, INT FRS 27 should be applied;
and where there is legally no lease, but there is a lease in substance, INT FRS 104
should be applied.

This Abpendix discusses the two INT FRSs.
«17-910 INT FRS 27

NOTE: INT FRS 27 will be superseded by FRS 116 Leases (see chapter on FRS

116) effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

The Accounting Standards Council (ASC) has issued INT ERS 27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease, which is operative on 1
February 2003.

INT FRS 27 addresses the accounting issue relating to a transaction or a series
of structured transactions (an arrangement) between an entity and an unrelated
party that involves the legal form of a lease.

An entity may enter into a transaction or an arrangement with an unrelated party
that involves a lease in legal form, but which may not be a lease in substance.
For example, an entity sells its asset and immediately leases the same asset back.
The form of these sale and leaseback transactions and their terms and conditions
may vary significantly. Some of these sale and leaseback transactions may actually
involve a genuine sales transaction and a genuine leasing transaction, however,
some may merely be financing arrangements in substance.

INT FRS 27 provides that a series of transactions that involve the legal form of a
lease is linked and should be accounted for as one transaction when the overall
economic effect cannot be understood without reference to the series of transactions
as a whole. This is the case, for example, when the series of transactions is closely
interrelated, negotiated as a single transaction and takes place concurrently or in
continuous sequence.

117-910
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937-500 Comparison with IASB standard

FRS 37 is based on IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets,
There are no significant differences between FRS 37 and IAS 37. Compliance with
FRS 37 will ensure compliance with TAS 37.

The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has issued an exposure
draft to amend IAS 37. One of the major changes proposed is to treat “probability”
as a measurement basis, instead of a recognition criterion.

IMustration 13

Assume that ABC Ltd (the Company) is being sued for breach of patent right and
asked to pay a damage of $10 million.

Scenario |

Assume that the company lawyer advises that there is a 60% chance that the Company
will have to pay $10 million. In this case, under the existing TAS 37, because the loss
is probable, the Company will have to recognise a provision. (IAS 37 does not spell
out clearly whether the amount provided for should be $10 million or $6 million (60%
x $10 million)). Under the forthcoming 1AS 37, the company will have to make a
provision of $6 million (60% x $10 million).

Scenario Il

Assume that the company lawyer advises that there is a 30% chance that the Company
will have to pay $10 million.

]h_ this case, under the existing 1AS 37, because the loss is not probable, the company
will not recognise a provision. (The event will be disclosed as a “contingent liability”
in the notes to the financial statements.)

Under the forthcoming TAS 37, the company will have to make a provision: of
$3 million (30% x $10 million).

1t may be noted that even though IAS 37 has not been revised, the new rule that
“probability” should affect measurement (and not recognition) has been applied
by IASB in many accounting issues, for example, accounting for a guarantee
liability under IAS 39 and accounting for contingent consideration in a business
combination under the revised IFRS 3.

In January 2010, a second exposure draft on proposed amendments to [1AS 37
was issued. In subsequent deliberations, the TASB has proposed that the terms
“provision”, “contingent liability” and “contingent asset” be eliminated. It is likely
that the new replacement standard for IAS 37 would refer simply to “liabilities”.
It would exclude warranty costs which would be addressed instead in the
new upcoming standard on revenue recognition — Revenue from Contracts with
Cuistomers.

937-500 © 2018 CCH Asia Pte Limited
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937-600 Appendix

This Appendix presents: (i) a framework on the accounting treatment for provisions
and contingent liabilities, and (ii) a short case study.

Framework
Amount can be reliably Amount cannot be
ineasured reliably measured
Probable Accrue Disclose
(as a “provision” if there is an
obligation)
Possible Disclose Disclose
Remote (| Ignore Ignore

Casestudy

(Oh 20 January 20x2, NumberOne Restaurant (No.One) was sued by two customers,
Mi A and Mr B, for food poisoning arising from the consumption of No.One’s cooked
‘ood. Mr A alleged that the food poisoning was related to the food he consumed at
No.One on 26 December 20x1 and Mr B alleged that the food poisoning was related
to the food he consumed at No.One on 10 January 20x2. On 1 February 20x2, No.One
paid Mr A and Mr B $200,000 and $300,000 respectively, in out-of-court settlements.
No.One has adopted a 31 December accounting year end.

For the case of Mr A, the obligating event (food poisoning) has occurred before
31 December 20x1, (and given that it is probable and the amount can be reliably
estimated), a provision should be made in respect of the year 20x1. The journal entry
is as follows:

Dr Other losses 200,000
Cr Provision for loss 200,000

For the case of Mr B, the obligating event (food poisoning) has not occurred as at
31 December 20x1, and it is therefore not appropriate to account for the provision
in respect of the year 20x1. (The loss of $300,000 will then be charged to the 20x2
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when paid.)

It may be noted that, in both the above-mentioned cases, the obligating event is “food
poisoning”. The act of suing is just a confirmatory event which adds to the probability.
If there is “food poisoning” but no “suing”, there is still an obligating event, except that
the “probable” test may not be met, and consequently, no “provision” would be made.

Note that the above-mentioned cases may also be analysed under FRS 10 Events after |
the Reporting Period and it may be noted that the same accounting treatments will be ‘
required. Under FRS 10, the case involving Mr A will be an “adjusting” event and the

loss of $200,000 charged to the 20x1 statement of /L. However, the case invelving |
Mr B will be a “non-adjusting event” which merely requires disclosure (nature and
financial effect) in the notes to the financial statements for 20x1.
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554 FRS 38 Intangible Assets

benefits flowing from the underlying resource and to restrict the access of others
to those benefits (para 13).

Thus, FRS 38 specifically provides that internally generated goodwill, brands,
mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance should
not be recognised as assets (para 48 and 63).

Examples of other expenditure that will not give rise to an intangible asset to be
recognised in the financial statements are as follows (para 69):

¢ Expenditure on starting up an operation or a business (start-up costs)

® Expenditure on training

® Expenditure on advertising and promotion, and

® Expenditure on relocating or reorganising part or all of an enterprise.

Generally, to assess whether an internally generated intangible asset meets the
criteria for recognition, FRS 38 requires an entity to classify the generation of the
asset into: (i) a research phase, and (ii) a development phase (para 52).

FRS 38 provides that all expenditure on research or during the research phase
of an internal project should be written off as an expense when incurred, and no
intangible asset should be recognised (para 54).

As for expenditure on development or during the development phase of an
internal project, FRS 38 provides that it should be capitalised as an intangible asset
if, and only if, the enterprise can demonstrate all of the following (para 57):

® Technical feasibility of completion

® Intention to complete

® Ability to use or sell the asset

® Generation of probable future economic benefits
® Availability of adequate resources to complete and to use of s2il, and

® Development expenditure attributable to the asset can be measured reliably.

138-220 Separately-acquired intangible assets

For separately-acquired intangible assets, FRS 38 provides that the probability
criterion is always considered to be satisfied (para 25), and that the cost can be
usually be measured reliably (para 26).

Normally, the price an enterprise pays to acquire an intangible asset reflects
expectations about the probability that the expected future economic benefits
embodied in the asset will flow to the enterprise.

Further, since there is a transaction, the measurement issue will also be overcome.

938-220 © 2018 CCH Asia Pte Limited
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Thus, most of the acquired intangible assets will be recognised as intangible assets
under FRS 38.

438-230 Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

For intangible assets acquired in a business combination, FRS 38 provides that
the probability criterion is always considered to be satisfied (para 33). However,
measurement for individual intangible assets may be an issue.

Thus, FRS 38 provides that an entity should recognise an intangible asset acquired
in a business combination separately from goodwill if the asset’s .FV can be
measured reliably, irrespective of whether the asset had been recognised by the
acquiree before the business combination (para 34).

FRS 38 furthéi provides that the FV of intangible assets acquired in busir_'tess
combinatiefis an normally be measured with sufficient reliability to be reco gn‘lsgd
separately from goodwill, especially if the acquired intangible assets have finite
usefid-ives (para 35).

F#28.38 specifically provides that an in-process research and development (R&D)
uroject of the acquiree should be recognised as an intangible asset separa_tely from
the goodwill if the project meets the definition of an intangible asset and its FV can
be measured reliably (para 34).

INITIAL MEASUREMENT

938-300 Initial measurement

FRS 38 provides that an intangible asset should be measured initially at cost
(para 24).

138-310 Internally generated intangible assets

FRS 38 provides that the cost of an internally generated intangible asset is the sum
of expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria (para 65).

Further, as previously mentioned, FRS 38 para 71 prohibits. expe_nditure that has
been initially recognised as an expense in previous annual fman(:lgl statements or
interim financial reports to be recognised as part of the cost of an intangible asset
at a later date.

§38-310
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FRS 38 Intangible Assets

value of $13 million, but revalued it downwards to $11 milli
and to $9 million on 31 December 20x7. e SR PR

In this case, the revaluation surplus of $3 million in 20x i

distributable reserve, “revaluation reserve”, the deficit 03r1S lox;l;ﬁle?;s:lec;jfl;%dn:?lﬁcl)wn—
20x5 should l:fe charged against the revaluation reserve, and of the revah{ati on de?‘ it
of $2 rr}l]hc?n in 20x7, $1 million should be charged to the revaluation reserv d i
other 81 million charged to the 20x7 income statement. -

Scenario B

Assume that on 1 January 20x2, XYZ Ltd (with 31 D

e : : , X 31 December accounti 3
jc:apltaha.ed an intangible asset with indefinite life at a cost of $20 miﬁigﬁfsgggsg
urther that, on 31 December 20x4, XYZ Ltd revalued its intangible asset do;nfnwards

to its market value of $18 million, and on 31 D i
maelrobie A and on ecember 20x6, revalued it upwards to

In this case, the deficit on revaluation of $2 million i

: ! million in 20x4 should be charged t
2}(1}x4 income statement. Of the revaluation surplus of $3 million in 20x6 3%2 nu(l)]fgs
should be ;1'ec_hted to the 20x6 income statement and the remaining $1 mil]ilon credited
to a non-distributable reserve, “revaluation reserve”. e

}\Tote’ that FRS 36 Tmpairmer_it of Assets (para 124) prohibits the reversal of impairment
loss IE?OgHISEd for goodwill in a subsequent period. This is because any subsequént
Increase in recoverable amount of goodwill after an impairment is likely to be an

increase in internally generated goodwill (FRS 36 para 125).

Depending on whether the useful life of an intangible asset is finite or indefinite
the subsequent accounting treatment will defer. ’

Spec;ificalvly, an intangible asset with finite life will be subjected to amortisationas.d
the umpairment test, while an intangible asset with indefinite useful life vvill :61&
be subjected to amortisation but will be subjected to a more vigorous 1'_11; aJrrn t
test. An enterprise applies FRS 36 to determine when to recognise P rgverseeariw

lmpa]IIII.EI‘lt 1()55 on an Hltal glble asset ar ld hOW |.'() measure t (=) airmern |: O
a

Thus, it is important, as required b i
; ] y para 88 of FRS 38, that an entity sh
whether the useful life of an intangible asset is finite or ]'.ndeﬁni?e, ¥ should nsiel

.[tma)./ be noted that FRS 38 requires an intangible asset to be regarded as having an
indefinite useful life when, based on the analysis of all of the relevant factors, there

is no foreseeable limit to the period over which i
: the asset is expected t
net cash inflows for an entity (para 88). : "By

FRS 38 further provides that the useful life of an intangible asset that has been
asse?ssed to be indefinite (and hence, not amortised) should be reviewed each
Perlo_d _to determine whether events and circumstances continue to stpport an
indefinite useful life assessment of that asset. If they do not, the changég in the

138-400
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useful life assessment from indefinite to finite life should be accounted for as a
change in accounting estimate in accordance with FRS 8 (para 109). FRS 38 para 110
further requires that, in this case, the entity test the intangible asset for impairment
in accordance with FRS 36.

38-410 Amortisation
FRS 38 provides that intangible assets with indefinite useful lives should not be
amortised (para 107).

For intangible assets with finite useful lives, however, FRS 38 provides that its
depreciable amount (ie cost or revalued amount less residual value) should be
amortised on a systematic basis over its useful life (para 97).

Thus, the discussion here is only applicable to intangible assets with finite useful
lives (whether{carried at cost or at revalued amount), and not applicable to
intangible asseis with indefinite useful lives.

Amortisation should commence when the asset is available for use and cease
wher! thie asset is derecognised or when the asset is classified as held for sale, if

exilier (para 97).

YRS 38 also requires that the amortisation method used should reflect the pattern
in which the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the enterprise. If that
pattern cannot be determined reliably, the straight line method should be adopted
(para 97).

In the Amendment to FRS 16 and FRS 38 (2014), which is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, FRS 38 is amended to provide that
amortisation method based on “revenue” is not apptopriate, unless the useful life
of the underlying intangible asset is limited by revenue (para 98A).

The amortisation charge should be recognised as an expense unless another FRS
permils or requires it to be included in the carrying amount of another asset (para 97).

For the purposes of determining the depreciable amount, FRS 38 specifies that the
residual value of an intangible asset is assumed to be zero unless there is either a
commitment by a third party to purchase the asset at the end of its useful life or an
active market by which its residual value can be determined and itis probable that
this market will exist at the end of the asset’s useful life (para 100).

FRS 38 requires the amortisation period and the amortisation method to be
reviewed at least at each financial year end (para 104). Any change to the
amortisation period and amortisation method should be accounted for as change
in accounting estimate in accordance with FRS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors.

§38-410
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560 FRS 38 Intangible Asseg

The following example illustrates the provisions of FRS 38 in relation ¢,
amortisation of intangible assets:

T lllustration 3

Assume that DEF Ltd has capitalised $12 million of development costs as at 31
December 20x1. DEF Ltd expects the net profit from the sale of the newly developed
product to be approximately $15 million, of which 50% will be earned in 20x2, 30% in
20x3 and 20% in 20x4.

In this case, the development costs should be amortised in a manner such that
$6 million will be charged to the 20x2 profit and loss (P&L) account, $3.6 million to
uhe 20x3 P&L account and $2.4 million to the 20x4 P&L account.

938-420 Impairment

FRS 38 requires all intangible assets (whether with finite or indefinite useful
lives, and whether carried at cost or at revalued amount) to be subjected to the
impairment test.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives, however, are subjected to the impairment
test only whenever there is indication that the asset may be impaired, whereas
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives should be subjected to the impairment
test at least annually and whenever there is indication that the asset may be
impaired (para 108).

To assess whether an intangible asset may be impaired, an enterprise applies FP'S
36 Impairment of Assets.

FRS 36 also requires the reversal of impairment loss for all intangible asseiz other
than goodwill accounted for under FRS 38.

The following examples illustrate the provisions of FRS 36 in relation i impairment
of intangible assets:

,7 »
llustration 4

In August 20x4, ABC Ltd pays $15,000,000 to acquire the business of another company.
Assume that, the net identifiable assets acquired include an intangible asset (Brand)
which has an FV of $3,000,000 at the date of acquisition.

Assume that, in 20x6, because of adverse press reports, the Brand is deemed to have
a recoverable amount of only $1,000,000.

In this case, the Brand is deemed to be impaired and an impairment loss of $2,000,000
has to be written off and charged against ABC’s 20x6 income statement.

Assume further that the press reports are subsequently found to be untrue and the
recoverable amount of the Brand increases to $2500,000 in 20x8.

In this case, there is a reversal of impairment in 20x8 and a gain of $1,500,000 will be
credited to ABC’s 20x8 income statement.

138-420
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|llustration 5 e T
that LMIN Ltd has capitalised $15,000,000 of development costs as
gZiErrgger 20x1. LMN Ltd expects the recoverable amour_tt from the sale of the new
roduct to be approximately $20,000,000, and the amount is to be earne_d et_*enly from
20x2 to 20x6. Assume further that as at 1 January 20x3 (after t_he amortisation charge
of $3,000,000 for 20x2 has been made, and when the unamortlsed amount, .therefoile,
stancis at $12,000,000), it is expected that, due to changes in the market conditions, the
recoverable amount in the future will only be $10,000,000 {to be earned evenly from
— $10,000,000) i sary.
is case, a write-down of $2,000,000 ($12,000,000 — ,000, s necessary.
I[F}lu'tsmif]flpal'11'ment loss should be charged to the 20x3 income statement. Note that
the amortisation charge for 20x3 will be $2,500,000 ($10,000,000 + 4), whilst the
amortisation charge for 20x2 was $3,000,000 ($15,000,000 =+ 5).

The journal entry for the impairment loss in 20x3 is as follows:

Dr Impdiiinent loss 2,000,000

Cr Acevmulated impairment 2,000,000

lllustration 6

Refer to the case of LMN Ltd in Hlustration 5. Leat55000,000
5 uary 20x5, (when the unamortised amount stan §at ,000, .

;At\izuézgi}i‘t; :ligg,]gﬂe toychang(es in the market conditions, the orl'_gmal fore;astebd

recoverable amount of $20,000,000 is attainable, and that $4,000,000 is expected to be

recovered in each of the years 20x5 and 20x6. .

i write-down of $2,000,000 in 20x3 should be reinstated. However,
g‘we?ri(;i:{i;seétgis for 20x3 and 20x4 have each been reduc_ed by $§O0,0QO ($3,OGO},1(?OE
— $2,500,000) due to the write-down in 20x3. Thus, the write-back in this case, w(f] (;'(:}0
should be credited to the 20x5 income statement,'wo_md be $1,000,000 (FpZ,OC(l) 2,0 ;
— $500,000 x 2). After the reinstatement, the amortisation charges for 20x5 an hxt
would each be $3,000,000 (($5,000,000 + $1,000,000) + 2), the same amount as tha
before the write-down. ‘

The journal entry to record the reinstatement of impairment in 20x5 is as follows:

Dr Accumulated impairment 2,000,000

A Practical Guide to Financial Reporting Standards (Singapore)

Cr Accumulated amortisation 1,000,000
Cr Write-back of impairment loss 1,000,000
938-420

! : ooz eem VT B T e e e e e
'11]1_!!!!!1!1!!!!215513:9!1!1!1!l!|11!1xxx1;11!l1|[1'l|ll!!!!}H!!!!!!!I!!!!;!!1!s,!1,1!!!‘!1‘!‘[1!,!11,””



5
62 FRS 38 Intangible Assets

138-500 Retirements and disposals

ERS 128 provfides that an intangible asset should be derecognised on disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected f i
Hispoms] (o P rom its use and subsequen

Gains and losses arising from the retirement or di i i

: : sposal of an intangible asset sh
be determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the car Dﬁd
amount of the asset and should be recognised in income statement (para 113)ry

938-600 Disclosures

FRS 38 requires the following disclosure for each class of intangible assets

distinguishing between internally generated intangi i i
e Vg intangible assets and other intangible

®  Whether the useful lives are finite or indefinite, and if finite, the useful lives

or the amortisation rates used

The amortisation methods used for intangible assets with finite useful lives
T}}e gross carryjng amount and the accumulated amortisation (aggregated
with accumulated impairment losses) at the beginning and end of the period
."Ihe Iil.’le item(s) of the income statement in which the amortisation of
intangible assets is included, and i

A reconciliation of the carryi inni
. ying amount at the beginning and
period showing— ° d nd o
- addit_ions, indicating separately those from internal development, thoze
acquired separately and those acquired through business combinations
— assets classified as held for sale and other disposals
= increa}ses or decreases during the period resulting from revaluations and
from impairment losses recognised or reversed directly it equity
— impairment losses recognised in the income statemen i i
tdu
e ring the period

— impairment losses reversed in the income statement duri _
under FRS 36 uring the period

— any amortisation recognised during the period

— net exchange differences arising on the translation of the financial
statements of a foreign entity, and

— other changes in the carrying amount during the period.
A class (_)f intangible assets is a grouping of assets of a similar nature and used in an
enterprise’s operations. Examples of separate classes may include: brand names;
mastheads and publishing titles; computer software; licences and franchises;

938-500
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copyrights, patents and other industrial property rights, service and operating
rights; recipes, formulae, models, designs and prototypes; and intangible assets
under development (para 119).

FRS 38 further requires the financial statements to disclose (para 122):
e for an intangible asset assessed as having an indefinite useful life, the
carrying amount of that asset and the reasons supporting the assessment of
an indefinite useful life

e a description, the carrying amount and remaining amortisation period
of any individual intangible asset that is material to the entity’s financial

statements
e for intangible assets acquired by way of a government grant and initially
recognised at FV—
— the I'Vuinitially recognised for these assets
- {heit carrying amounts, and
#hether they are measured using the cost model or the revaluation
model.

4 'the existence and carrying amounts of intangible assets whose title is
restricted and the carrying amounts of intangible assets pledged as security
for liabilities, and

e the amount of contractual commitments for the acquisition of intangible
assets.

For intangible assets that are carried at revalued amounts, FRS 38 requires the
following additional disclosures (para 124):
® By class of intangible assets—
— the effective date of the revaluation
— the carrying amount of revalued intangible assets, and

— the carrying amount that would have been included in the financial
statements had the revalued intangible assets been measured using the
cost model.

® The amount of the revaluation surplus that relates to intangible assets at the
beginning and end of the period, indicating the changes during the period
and any restrictions on the distribution of the balance to shareholders, and

® The methods and significant assumptions applied in estimating the
assets’ FVs.

For R&D expenditure, FRS 38 requires the financial statements to disclose the
aggregate amount of R&D expenditure recognised as an expense during the
period (para 126).

938-600
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938-700 Transitional provisions
ERS 38 is operative for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2004.

FRS 38 should be applied prospectively (para 129). Thus, on the first day FRS
38 is adopted, an entity should not adjust the carrying amount of its recognised
intangible assets.

Further, on the first day FRS 38 is adopted, an entity should reassess the usefy]
lives of its recognised intangible assets. If, as the result of the reassessment, the
entity changes its assessment of the useful life of an asset, that change should
be accounted for as a change in accounting estimate in accordance with FRS §
(para 129).

9138-800 Comparison with IASB standard

FRS 38 is based on IAS 38 Intangible Assets. There are no significant differences
between FRS 38 and IAS 38. Compliance with FRS 38 will ensure compliance with
IAS 38.

738-900 Appendix A: INT FRS 32

The Accounting Standards Council (ASC) issued INT FRS 32 Intangible Assets —
Web Site Costs, which was operative on 1 February 2003.

INT FRS 32 addresses the accounting issues relating to internal expenditure on
the development and operation of an entity’s own website for internal or external
access: (i) whether the website is an internally generated intangible asset under
FRS 36, and (ii) the appropriate accounting treatment of such expenditure.

An enterprise may incur internal expenditure on the development and ‘operation
of its own website for internal or external access. A web site designed for external
access may be used for various purposes such as to promote atid advertise an
enterprise’s own products and services, provide electronic Services and sell
products and services. A website designed for internal access may be used to store
company policies and customer details and search relevant information. The stages
of a website’s development comprise: planning, application and infrastructure
development, graphical design development and content development.

INT FRS 32 provides that an enterprise’s own website that arises from development
and is for internal or external access is an internally generated intangible asset that
is subject to the requirements of FRS 38.

INT FRS 32 further provides that a website arising from development shall be
recognised as an intangible asset if, and only if, in addition to complying with the
general recognition requirements described in FRS 38 para 21, an enterprise can
satisfy the requirements in FRS 38 para 57.

938-700 © 2018 CCH Asia Pte Limited
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i i f a website development, which
example, expenditure on the planning stage o :
iogunilarP;o the research phase in FRS 38 para 54 to 56, should be expensed when

NCUET ed.

On the other hand, expenditure on the application and infrastructure developmﬁent
stage, the graphical design stage and the content developmgnt stage, (_)ther t ];aln
for advertisement and promotion purposes, shm_lld be recog_msed as an intangi t e
asset when the expenditure can be directly attributed and is n‘eces_sary to create,

roduce or prepare the website for it to be capable of operating in the manner

intended by management.

Expenditure to develop content during the content d.evelopment stage to ac(ljver:se
and promote an enterprise’s own products and services shoul.d be expensed when
incurred. Similarly, expenditure on the operating stage, which commences orgﬁe
development of a website is complete, should be expensed unless it meets the

recoghition ¢fi‘eria of FR5 38 para 18.

§38-900
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Hlustration 15
Assume that P Ltd acquired S Ltd on 1 April 20x5.

P Ltd has 31 December year ends and provides for a full year’s depreciation, on
straight line basis, on assets in the year of acquisition and nil in the year of disposal.

On the date of acquisition, a piece of machinery of S Ltd acquired was deemed to
have a FV of $500,000 and a remaining useful life of five years, and the goodwill was
consequently determined to be $2,000,000.

Based on the above-mentioned valuation, the depreciation expense for the machinery
was $100,000 for the year ended 31 December 20x5. In the balance sheet as at 31

December 20x5, the machine and goodwill were carried respectively at $400,000 and
$2,000,000.

During 20x6, P Ltd receives the results of a valuation study which concludes that the

machinery actually had an FV of $600,000 (instead of $500,000) at the date of acquisition
and therefore, the goodwill should have been $1,900,000 (instead of $2,000,000).

Scenario A

It the valuation study was received before 1 April 20x6 (within 12 months of the
acquisition date), FRS 103 requires adjustments to be made to the carrying amount of
the machine as if the adjusted FV had been applied from the date of acquisition, and
the goodwill should also be adjusted.

The carrying amounts of the machine and goodwill as at 1 January 20x6 should
therefore be adjusted to $480,000 ($600,000 — ($600,000 + 5)) and $1,900,000 respectively.

Scenario B

If the valuation study was received after 1 April 20x6, FRS 103 requires that adjustment
be accounted for as a correction of error.

Applying the requirements of FRS 8, the carrying amount of the machine as at
January 20x6 should be adjusted to $480,000, and the difference of $80,000 ($480,000 -
$400,000) should be adjustment to the beginning retained profit (BRP). The gooawill
will continue to be carried at $2,000,000.

7103-600 Step acquisition (Piecemeal acquisition)

A step acquisition (also commonly referred to as piecemeal acquisition) is an

acquisition where control is achieved in stages through more than one exchange
transaction.

In the case of step acquisition, FRS 103 provides that the acquirer should remeasure
its previously held equity interest in the acquiree at its acquisition-date FV and
recognise the resulting gain or loss, if any, in profit or loss (P/L) (para 42). Thus, on
the date when control is achieved, the original equity interests will be accounted as
if they were disposed of and reacquired.

9103-600 © 2018 CCH Asia Pte Limited

lllustration 16

Scenario | ] o610

i tacosto million

tober 20x1, A Ltd purchases 10% of the S]’h?l].‘es in B Lt ?, n,

]fa;c? f:lassifies the shares},) as “investment in trading securities under FRS 39. On 1fs

accounting year end on 31 December 20x1, when the market value of the share_s is

$11 million, A Ltd remeasures the investment to $11 million and recognises a profit of
¢1 million in 20x1, in accordance with FRS 39.

i i hase of an additional
April 20x2, A Ltd acquires control of B Ltd through the purchase ¢ d
g(}r‘:/: ofpthe shares in B Ltd. At this date, the market value of the original 10% shares
in B Ltd is $13 million.

i i e gT level, remeasure its 10%
this case, FRS 103 requires A Ltd to, at the group level, : 1
illllareholdmg in B Ltd to $13 million on 1 April 20x2 and recognise a profit of $2 million
in its profit for 20x2.

Scenario I/ | -
2U in D Ltd ata costo million
Octobér 20x1, C Ltd purchases 10% of the sl,hares in cost ,
f:;\d classities the shares as “investment in available-for-sale securities” under FRS 39.
On its accounting year ends on 31 December 20x1 and 20x2, when the market values
© e ghares are $11 million and $13 million, respectively, C Ltd remeasures lthe
ip'Jes-atment and recognises in its FV reserve, $1 million in 20x1 and another $2 million
in 20x2, in accordance with FRS 39.

i i hase of an additional

1 April 20x3, C Ltd acquires control of D Ltd through purchase o d \

(6)0n“/o of Ec)he shares in D Ltd. At this date, the market value of the original 10% shares
in D Ltd is $14 million.

i its 10%

is case, FRS 103 requires C Ltd to, at the group level, remeasure its 1
:T?\?la:}éll’slofgmg in D Ltd to %14 million on 1 April 20x3 and recognise a‘t(')tal profit of
$4 million by recognising the $1 million profit and reversing the $3 million from FV
reserve to profit,

Scenario Il B
In October 20x1, E Ltd purchases 30% of the shares in F Ltd at a cost of $30 million.
E Ltd classifies the shares as “investment in associate” and carries it at Cogt und_er
FRS 28 (assuming B Ltd has subsidiaries and presents consolidated financial
statements). .
In November 20x2, E purchases another 10% of the shares in F Ltd at a cost of
$11 million.

i i ; hase of an additional
On 1 April 20x3, E Ltd acquires control of F Ltd through purc > _
2{)n°/u of Il:jl'l;e shares in F Ltd‘?[At this date, the market value of the 40% shares in F Ltd
purchased in 20x1 and 20x2 is $50 million.

In this case, FRS 103 requires ELtd to, at the group level, remeasure its 40%shareholding

in F Ltd to $50 million on 1 April 20x3 and recognise a profit of $9 million.
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The following illustration illustrates the consolidation process involved in a case
of step acquisition:

lllustration 17

On 1 January 20x1, PAR Ltd acquires a 20% interest in SUB Ltd for a cash consideration
of $5 million. The interest in SUB Ltd is accounted for as “Investment in associate”
and carried at cost under FRS 28 (assuming PAR Ltd has subsidiaries and presents
consolidated financial statements). At this date, SUB Ltd’s balance sheet comprises
share capital of $10 million (comprising 10 million shares) and retained profit (RP)
of $10 million, and land of $10 million (the market value of which is $15 million) and
cash of $10 million.

On 31 December 20x3, when SUB Ltd’s shares are traded at $6 per share, PAR Ltd
acquires control of SUB Ltd through purchase of an additional 50% interest in SUB
Ltd for a cash consideration of $30 million. At this date, SUB Ltd’s balance sheet
comprises share capital of $10 million and RP of $20 million, and land of $10 million
(the market value of which is $30 million) and cash of $20 million. '

As required by FRS 103, PAR Ltd remeasures its investment in the original 20% of
SUB Ltd to $12 million (2 million shares x $6) and recognises a profit of $7 million on
31 December 20x3.

On 31 December 20x3, PAR Lid’s balance sheet comprises share capital of $50 million
and RP of $13 million, and investment in SUB of $35 million and cash of $28 million.

In the preparation of the 20x3 consolidated balance sheet for the PAR Ltd group, the
following consolidation adjustments are required in relation to the step acquisition of
SUB Ltd (assuming the NCI is measured based on the FV of the net identifiable assets
of the subsidiary:

$'mil $'mil
Dr Investment in SUB 7
Cr Profit on revaluation of investment 7
(to remeasure investment in step acquisition)
Dr Share capital (70% x 10) 7
Dr Retained profit (70% x 20) 14
Dr Land (70% x 20) 14
D1 Goodwill 7
Cr Investment in SUB 42
(to eliminate investment in SUB)
Dr Share capital (30% x 10) 3
Dr Retained profit (30% x 20) 6
Dr Land (30% x 20)
Cr Non-controlling interest 15

(to record non-controlling interest)

T103-600

© 2018 CCH Asia Pte Limited

—THIITUU!luu!u1guufu;:snuuuu;guuu!"“!l!ll|n;sz:nzzz:z:nnn;.;:=suuun;uu!unnuuluT[TII

FRS 103 Business Combinations 681

The consolidated balance sheet of PAR Ltd group as at 31 December 20x3 is as
follows:

$'mil
Share capital 50
Retained profit (13 + 7) 20
70
Non-controlling interest 15
85
Goodwill 7
Land 30
Cash 48
85

Note that ihis is a case where the parent is acquiring control of a subsidiary in step
acquisition, and the NCI is measured based on FV of net identifiable assets of the
sulizidiary. In such a case, as previously mentioned, FRS 103 provides that the gooFiW]ll
@iil-pe computed as the difference (whether positive or negative) between: (i) the
sum of the parent’s cost of acquisition and the acquisition-date FV of the Parent’s
previously held equity interest, and (ii) the parent’s total share of the acquisition date
FV of the net identifiable assets of the subsidiary, as follows:

Cost of the 50% $30,000,000
Acquisition-date fair value of previously held 20% $12,000,000
Total $42,000,000

Less 70% share of acquisition-date fair value of net identifiable
assets of subsidiary

(70% x ($30,000,000 + $20,000,000) $35,000,000
Goodwill 7,000,000

This may also be computed as the total cost of $35 million (85 million + $30 million)
plus the acquisition-date FV adjustment of the previously held equity interest of
$7 million ($12 million — $5 million).

1103-620 Business combination achieved by contract

In a business combination achieved by contract alone, FRS 103 provides that the
acquirer should attribute to the owners of the acquiree the amount of the acquiree’s
net assels ag NCI (para 44).

Itis possible, in this case, that all the equity interests in the acquiree are attributable
to the NCL

1103-620
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682 FRS 103 Business Combinations

ownership interest of the combined entity that results from the reverse acquisition.
The FV of the number of equity instruments so calculated should be used as the
cost of acquisition (para B20).

9103-640 Reverse acquisition

Areverseacquisition is an acquisition where the entity that issues securities (thelegal

acqgjrgr) is identified as the acquiree for accounting purposes, and the entity whose
equity interests are acquired (the legal acquiree) is accounted for as the acquirer.

Reverse acquisition often occurs where a non-listed entity arranges to have itself
“acquired” by a smaller listed entity as a means of obtaining listing in a stock
exchange (often referred to as “back-door listing”). In such a reverse acquisition, even
though legally the listed entity is regarded as the parent and the non-listed en’tity is
regarded as the subsidiary, it may be noted that in substance, the private entity (legal
subsidiary) is the acquirer and the listed entity (legal parent) is the acquiree.

Guidance on accounting for reverse acquisition is provided for in para B19
t
of Appendix B of FRS 103. ¥ para B19 to B27

FRS 103 provides that the consolidated financial statements prepared following
a reverse acquisition should be issued under the name of the legal parent, but
described in the notes as a continuation of the financial statements of the ie al
subsidiary (para B19). i

Specifically, FRS 103 requires the following (para B22):

® The issued share capital in the consolidated financial statements should be
that of the legal parent company

® The reserves in the consolidated financial statements should be those of the
legal subsidiary plus the legal subsidiary’s interest in the post-acquisition
reserve of the legal parent plus the difference arising from the revetse
acquisition (see following)

¢ The assets and liabilities of the legal subsidiary should be recoenised and
measured in the consolidated financial statements at their pre o rbination
carrying amounts, and the assets and liabilities of the legal parents are to be
recognised and measured based on their acquisition-date FV, and

Comparative information presented in the consolidated financial statements
should be that of the legal subsidiary.

One of the major issues in accounting for reverse acquisition is the determination
of the cost of acquisition.

In a reverse acquisition, the cost of acquisition is deemed to have been incurred by

the legal subsidiary in the form of equity instruments issued to the owners of the
legal parent.

.FRS 103 requires a calculation to be made to determine the number of equity
instruments the legal subsidiary would have had to issue, in a normal
acquisition, to give the owners of the legal parent the same percentage

9103-640 © 2018 CCH Asia Pte Limited
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lllustration 18

ABC Lid is listed in the Singapore Exchange (SGX) with 100 million shares in issue.
The shareholders of XYZ Pte Ltd (which has 60 million shares in issue) wish to be
listed through “back-door listing”.

On 30 June 20x6, the two companies effect a takeover under which ABC issues 2.5
shares in exchange of each ordinary shares of XYZ, ie ABC issues 150 million of its
shares in exchange for all the 60 million shares in XYZ,

In this case, while XYZ is legally a 100% owned subsidiary of ABC, the shareholders
of XYZ have in fact, gained a 60% control (150/250) over ABC. This is an example of
reverse acgsition.

Assume thhat the balance sheets of the two companies immediately before the above-
meniioned reverse acquisition as follows:

ABC XYZ

$'mil $'mil

Assets 180 370
Liabilities (70) 170

110 200

Share capital 100 60

Retained profit 10 140

110 200

For the purposes of determining the cost of acquisition, it is necessary to determine
the number of shares that XYZ would have to issue in an ordinary acquisition (and
the FV of those shares). FRS 103 provides that the number of shares that XYZ would
have to issue is equal to the number of shares that would provide the shareholders of
ABC the same percentage ownership interest of the combined entity as they have in
the reverse acquisition. In this case, given that after the reverse acquisition the other
shareholders in ABC now have 40% interest in XYZ (through ABC), XYZ will have to
issue 40 million of its shares (in an ordinary takeover) to give the same effect.

Assume that at 30 June 20x6, the FV of XYZ's shares is estimated at $5.00 per share,
the cost of takeover is deemed to be $200 million (40 million x $5).

Assume further that ABC’s assets have a FV of $190 million and the goodwill on
consolidation is $80 million (cost of acquisition of $200 million — FV of net assets
acquired of $120 million ($190 million — $70 million)).

FRS 103 further provides that the consolidated financial statements should be
prepared from the viewpoint of XYZ (the legal subsidiary), except that the share
capital should be that of ABC (the legal parent).

A Practical Guide to Financial Reporting Standards (Singapore) 9103-640
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(ii) additional goodwill recognised during the reporting period, except
goodwill included in a disposal group that, on acquisition, meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale in accordance with FRS 105 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

(iii) adjustments resulting from the subsequent recognition of deferred tax
assets during the reporting period in accordance with para 67

(iv) goodwill included in a disposal group classified as held for sale in
accordance with FRS 105 and goodwill derecognised during the
reporting period without having previously been included in a disposal
group classified as held for sale

(v) impairment losses recognised during the reporting period in accordance
with FRS 36. (FRS 36 requires disclosure of information about the
recoverable amount and impairment of goodwill in addition to this
requirement)

(vi) net exchange rate differences arising during the reporting period in
accordance with FRS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

(vii) any other changes in the carrying amount during the reporting period

(viii) the gross amount and accumulated impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period.

(e) The amount and an explanation of any gain or loss recognised in the current
reporting period that both:

(i) relates to the identifiable assets acquired or liabilities assumed in a
business combination that was effected in the current or previcus
reporting period, and

(ii) is of such a size, nature or incidence that disclosure is relevant to
understanding the combined entity’s financial statements.

9103-800 Comparison with FRS 103 (2004)
There are several major differences between FRS 103 and FRS 103 (2004).

ERS 103 (2004) requires NCI (referred to as “minority interest”) to be initially
measured based on its proportionate share of the acquisition-date FV of the net
identifiable assets of the subsidiary. FRS 103 allows NCI to be measured based on
either: (i) its FV or (ii) its proportionate share of the acquisition-date FV of the net
identifiable assets of the subsidiary.

Arising from the different measurement bases for NCI allowed under FRS 103,
the amount of goodwill (negative goodwill) will be different depending on the
measurement basis used for the NCL Under FRS 103 (2004), goodwill is just the
difference between the parent’s cost of acquisition and the parent’s proportionate
share of the acquisition-date FV of the net identifiable assets of the subsidiary.

T103-800 © 2018 CCH Asia Pte Limited
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FRS 103 specifically requires all acquisition-related costs to be expensed when
incurred. FRS 103 (2004) allowed costs that are directly attributable to acquisition
to be capitalised as part of the acquisition cost.

FRS 103 contains more specific and detailed provisions on “step acquisition”.

Business combinations involving only mutual entities and business combinations
achieved by contract alone, which were outside the scope of FRS 103 (2004), are
now within the scope of FR5 103.

1103-850 Comparison with IASB standard

FRS 103 is based on IFRS 3 (2009) Business Combinations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

There are no major differences between FRS 103 and I[FRS 3 (2009). Compliance
with FRS 103 wiil ensure compliance with IFRS 3 (2009).

APPENDIX A

1163-900 Appendix A
This appendix presents:
® an illustration on the purchase method of accounting for business
combinations, and
®  discussion on “pooling of interest” (or “merger”) method.

9103-910 Purchase method of accounting for
business combination

lllustration A1

On 30 June 20x8, A Ltd issues 100,000 of its shares to the shareholders of B Ltd
in exchange for 90,000 of B Ltd’s shares. (B Ltd’s share capital consists of 100,000
shares. Assume B Ltd’s revenue and expenses for 20x8 accrues evenly throughout
the year). After the above-mentioned exchange, the shareholders of A Ltd and former
shareholders of B Ltd now jointly own and share the risks and benefits of A Ltd,
which in turn owns B Ltd.

At the date of the above-mentioned transaction, the market value of A Ltd’s shares is
$2.00 per share, and B Ltd’s net assets are stated at their respective FV, except for land
which is deemed to be undervalued by $10,000. Any other excess payment is deemed
to be payment for advantage of affiliation, which is to be amortised over five years,
commencing 20x9, on a straight line basis.

During December 20x8, B Lid sells raw material of $50,000 (invoiced at cost + 50%)
to A Ltd. As at 31 December 20x8, A Ltd’s stock includes $30,000 of raw material
purchased from B Ltd.

1103-910
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716 FRS 106 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

9106-100 Introduction

FRS 106 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources was issued on 18

August 2005 and became operative for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2006.

The objective of FRS 106 is to specify the financial reporting for the exploration
for and evaluation of mineral resources. Specifically, FRS 106 applies only to
exploration and evaluation expenditure that an entity incurs; it does not addresg
the other aspects of accounting by entities engaged in the mining industry.

Some of the key terminologies used in FRS 106 are defined as follows:

® “Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resource” is defined as the search

for mineral resources after the entity has obtained legal rights to explore in
a specific area, as well as the determination of the technical feasibility and
commercial viability of extracting the mineral resources.

“Exploration and evaluation expenditure” is defined as expenditure incurred
by an entity in connection with the exploration for and evaluation of
mineral resources before the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting the mineral resources are demonstrable. Examples of exploration
and evaluation expenditure include expenditure incurred in relation to
acquisition, right to explore, topographical, geological, geochemical and
geophysical studies, exploratory drilling, trenching and sampling, and

evaluating the technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting a
mineral resource.

“Exploration and evaluation assets” is defined as exploration and evaluziion
expenditure recognised as assets in accordance with the entity’s accounting
policy.

FRS 106 is not very substantive in content (since it is just phise-one of the
International Accounting Standards Board (LASB) project on exifaitive industry).
Thus, this chapter will just briefly discuss the major provisions ot FRS 106.

9106-200 Recognition

FRS 106 allows an entity to adopt any accounting policy for the recognition of
exploration and evaluation assets, so long as the accounting policy will result in
information that is relevant and reliable, consistent with the requirement of para
10 of FRS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors (para 6).
In developing the accounting policy, FRS 106 does not require an entity to make
reference to the requirement and guidance of a similar FRS and to the concepts in
the Framework, or to the pronouncements of other accounting-setting bodies and

other accounting literature, as would otherwise be required under para 11 and
para 12 of FRS 8 (para 7).

T106-100 © 2018 CCH Asia Pte Limited
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M 06-300 Measurement
i i ion ts, upon recognition, should
106 provides that exploration and evaluation asse :
FRSmeaSEIed at cost (para 8). Subsequently, they may be accounted for using thgeg
Egst model or the revaluation model, in accordance with FRS 16 Property, Plant an
Equipment Or FRS 38 Intangible Assets.

M 06-400 Impairment
i i i ts to be assessed for impairment
5 106 requires exploration and evaluation asse :
fﬁlen factsqand circumstances suggest that the carrying amount of the assets may
exceed its recoverable amount.

Examples of facts and circumstances that indicate impairmen't are: - )

e the period for which the entity has th.e right to explore in a specific area has
expired dusing the period or will expire in the near futur'e -

e exploration for and evaluation of minerql resources in th.e. spec1f1cl area1
have not led to the discovery of commercially viable quantltu.eslolf minera
fesGurces and the entity has decided to discontinue such activities the
specific area, and ‘

5" sufficient data exists to indicate that the carrying amount of the exploration
and evaluation asset is unlikely to be recovered in full.

FRS 106 also provides that an entity should determine an accounting policy fo;
allocating exploration and evaluation assets to c.ash generating units or grozgh
of cash generating units for the purpose of assessing ]_Tnpalrme.nt. Howevler, et o
cash generating unit or groups of cash generating units to which an zxp ora "
and evaluation asset is allocated should not be larger than a segment determine
in accordance with FRS 14 Segment Reporting (para 21).

FRS 106 further provides that any impairment loss should be accounted for in
accordance with FRS 36 Impairment of Assels.

9106-500 Presentation

Some exploration and evaluation assets are tre.ated as tanglbl(le lasser hie)g
vehicles and drilling rigs) whereas others as mtanglble assets (eg drlllmghrlg s).
Sometimes, a tangible asset is used to develop an intangible asset. In such a iatie,
the value of the tangible asset consumed is to be treated as part of the cost of the

intangible asset.

FRS 106 requires the exploration and evaluation assets to be classified as tangible
assets or intangible assets according to the nature of the assets (para 15).

FRS 106 further requires the exploration and evaluation assets to be presented as a
separate class of assets (para 25).

9106-500

A Practical Guide to Financial Reporting Standlards (Singapore)

ittt i st r i T T T T c T T T C T T I L L T T T T D o
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9107-100 Introduction

The International Accounting Standards Board (LASB) has issued four accounting
standards on financial instruments:

® 1AS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation, issued in March 1995
and operative on 1 January 1996, deals with the disclosure and presentation
issues relating to financial instruments (since 1 January 2007, TAS 32 no longer
deals with disclosure issues, which are dealt with in IERS 7)

® 1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, issued in January
1999 and operative on 1 January 2001, deals with the recognition and
measurement issues relating to financial instruments

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures, issued in August 2005 and operative
on 1 January 2007, deals with disclosure issues relating to financial instruments
(superseding the provisions of IAS 32 on disclosure issues), and

® IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, first issued in July 2014, will replace TAS 39
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

In Singapore, TAS 32 was issued by the CCDG as FRS 32 (2003) Financial
Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation in January 2003 and was operative for
financial statements covering periods beginning on or after 1 October 2000. IAS
39 was issued as FRS 39 (2003) Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
in May 2003 and was operative for financial statements covering periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2005. IFRS 7 was issued as FRS 107 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures in January 2006 to supersede those provisions of FR3
32 dealing with disclosure issues and is operative on 1 January 2007 for listad
companies and on 1 January 2008 for non-listed companies. (The title of #1175 32
has been consequently renamed Financial Instruments: Presentation.) IFKS 9 was
issued as FRS 109 Financial Instruments in December 2014 to supersede FRS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and was operaiiveaor financial
statements covering periods beginning on or after 1 January 201¢

Thus, commencing from 1 January 2018, the three FRSs dealing with financial
instruments are, namely:

® TRS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation

® FRS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures; and

® FERS 109 Financial Instruments.

The objective of FRS 107 is to require entities to provide disclosures in their financial
statements that enable users to evaluate the significance of financial instruments
for the entity’s financial position and performance; and the nature and extent of
risks arising from financial instruments to which the entity is exposed during the
period and at the reporting date, and how the entity manages those risks.

T107-100 © 2018 CCH Asia Pte Limited
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The effective date of FRS 107 is as follows:

e Companies incorporated or foreign companies registered under the Compani.es
Act that have been admitted to the official list of a securities exchange in
Singapore and have not been removed from that official list, should apply
FRS 107 for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007.

e All other entities incorporated or registered in Singapore should apply FRS
107 for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008.

Earlier application is encouraged. If an entity applies this FRS for an earlier period,
it should disclose that fact.

FRS 107 is applicable to all types of financial instruments, except:

e those interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures that are
accounted far in accordance with FRS 110 Consolidated Financial Statements,
FRS 27 Sengrate Financial Statements, or FRS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Vertures. However, in some cases, FRS 110, FRS 27 or FRS .28 permits
an@ntity to account for an interest in a subsidiary, associate ot joint venture
using FRS 109. In those cases, entities should apply the requirements in FRS
107 and, for those measured at fair value, the requirements of FRS 113 Fair
Value Measurement. Entities should also apply FRS 107 to all derivatives linked
to interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures unless the derivative
meets the definition of an equity instrument in FRS 32

® employers’ rights and obligations arising from employee benefit plans, to
which FRS 19 Employee Benefits applies

® insurance contracts as defined in FRS 104 Insurance Contracts. However, FRS
107 applies to derivatives that are embedded in insurance contracts ]f FRS
109 requires the entity to account for them separately. Mpreover, an issuer
should apply FRS 107 to financial guarantee contracts if the issuer applies FRS
109 in recognising and measuring the contracts, but should apply FRS 104_1f
the issuer elects, in accordance with para 4(d) of FRS 104, to apply FRS 104 in
recognising and measuring them

® financial instruments, contracts and obligations under share-based payment
transactions to which FRS 102 Share-based Payment applies, except that FRS
107 applies to contracts within the scope of para 5 to para 7 of FRS 39; and

® instruments that are required to be classified as equity instruments in
accordance with paragraphs 16A and 16B or paragraphs 16C and 16D of
FRS 32.
The disclosures required under FRS 107 may be categorised into:
® accounting disclosures, and

® risk disclosures.

1107-100
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ACCOUNTING DISCLOSURES

9107-200 Accounting disclosures

FRS 107_req}1ires an entity to disclose such accounting information so as to enable
users of its fil:lﬁﬂClal statements to evaluate the significance of financial instruments
for its financial position and performance.

Such accounting information should be disclosed either in the statement of profit
or loss and F)ther comp rehensive income, statement of financial position, statement
of changes in equity or the notes to the financial statements.

7107-210 Statement of financial position

FRS 107 requires the following information in i
107 | relation to statement i i
position items to be disclosed (para 7). et of fnancl

Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities

The carrying amounts of each of the following categories, as defined in FRS 109

should be disclosed eith: th i i it i
et s er on the face of the statement of financial position or in

® financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), showing separately:
— those designated as such upon initial recognition or subsequently, and |
— those classified as held for trading in accordance with FRS-109.
financial liabilities at FVTPL, showing separately:
— those designated as such upon initial recognition or subsequernitly, and
— those classified as held for trading in accordance with FRS.106. f
financial assets measured at amortised cost.

financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

financial assets measured at fair value through ive i
other co
(FVTOCI), showing separately: ¢ prehensive incoil

- IZhDSE IIIE‘aSl.L‘[ed at I v I()CI, alld
- thOSE mves tments m eq lllty ].I"leI‘leentS de (5
51 at C[aSSL](hl]la((U nce
ng da

Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

If the entity has designated a financial asset (or a group of financial assets) that

would otherwise be FVTOCT or amortised cost as mea FV
Id ot d
requires it to disclose (para 9): S

1107-200 © 2018 CCH Asia Pte Limited
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e the maximum exposure to credit risk of the financial asset (or group of
financial assets) at the reporting date.

e the amount by which any related credit derivatives or similar instruments
mitigate that maximum exposure to credit risk.

e the amount of change, during the period and cumulatively, in the fair value
(FV) of the financial asset (or group of financial assets) that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of the financial asset determined either:

_ as the amount of change in its FV that is not attributable to changes in
market conditions that give rise to market risk, or

— using an alternative method the entity believes more faithfully represents
the amount of change in its FV that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of the asset.

e the amourt of the change in the FV of any related credit derivatives or similar
instrumén's that has occurred during the period and cumulatively since the
financial asset was designated.

If an-énfity has designated a financial liability as at FVTPL, and is required to
résant the effects of changes in that liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
wicome (OCI), FRS 107 para 10 requires it to disclose:

e the amount of change, cumulatively, in the FV of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability.

e the difference between the financial liability’s carrying amount and the
amount the entity would be contractually required to pay at maturity to the
holder of the obligation.

® any transfers of the cumulative gain or loss within equity during the period
including the reason for such transfers.

® if a liability is derecognised during the period, the amount (if any) presented
in OCI that was realised at derecognition.

If an entity has designated a financial liability as at FVIPL, and is required to
present all changes in the fair value of that Jliability in profit or loss, FRS 107 para
10A requires it to disclose:
® the amount of change, during that period and cumulatively, in the FV of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability.
e the difference between the financial liability’s carrying amount and the
amount the entity would be contractually required to pay at maturity to the
holder of the obligation.

Additionally, FRS 107 requires the entity to disclose:
¢ the methods used to determine the FV attributable to changes in credit risk
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® if the entity believes that the disclosure it has given to comply with the above.
mentioned requirements does not faithfully represent the change in the FV of the
financial asset or financial liability attributable to changes in its credit risk, the
reasons for reaching this conclusion and the factors it believes are relevant, and

a detailed description of the methodology or methodologies used to
determine whether presenting the effects of changes in a liability’s credit risk
in OCT would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. If
an entity is required to present the effects of changes in a liability’s credit
risk in profit or loss, the disclosure must include a detailed description of the
economic relationship as described in FRS 109.

Investments in equity instruments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income

If the entity has designated investments in equity instruments to be measured at
FVTOCI, ERS 107 requires it to disclose (para 11A):

® which investments in equity instruments have been designated to be
measured at FVTOCI.

® the reasons for using this presentation alternative.

® the fair value of each such investment at the end of the reporting period.

® dividends recognised during the period, showing separately those related to
investments derecognised during the reporting petiod and those related *n
investments held at the end of the reporting period.

]

any transfers of the cumulative gain or loss within equity during the pieriod
including the reason for such transfers.

Under FRS 107 para 11B, where an entity derecognised such investinents, it shall
disclose (a) the reasons for disposal, (b) fair value at the date of derecognition, and
() the cumulative gain or loss on disposal.

Reclassification

If the entity has reclassified a financial asset, FRS 107 requires it to disclose the
date of reclassification, a detailed explanation of the change in business model and
a qualitative description of its effect on the entity’s financial statements, and the
amount reclassified into and out of each category (para 12B)

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

There are also disclosure requirements stated in FRS 107 paragraphs 13B-13E for
those recognised financial instruments that are set off in accordance to FRS 32, as
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well as those recognised financial instruments that are subject to an enforceable
master netting arrangement or similar agreement (para 13A).

[n March 2012, the Accounting Standards Council (ASC) issugd Amgpdments
to FRS 107 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. The
Amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1l]anua.ry
2013 and interim periods within those annual periods and complied with
retrospecti_vely.
This Amendment requires disclosure of information about_ ri.g_h.ts of set-off
associated with the entity’s recognised financial assets and liabilities to enable
ﬁnderstanding of the actual and potential effects of netting arrangements on the
entity’s financial position (para 13B).

In particular, the following quantitative information is required to be. digglgsed
separately under FRS 107 para 13C for recognised financial assets and liabilities:
(a) the gross amounts of those recognised financial assets and liabilities;

(b) Aie amounts set off in accordance with FRS 32;

() “ihe net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;

(¢ the amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
; agreement that are not included in (b), including:

e amounts related to recognised financial instruments that do not meet
some or all of the offsetting criteria in FRS 32, and

* amounts related to financial collaterals (including cash collaterals);
(¢) The net amount after deducting the amount in (d) from the amount in (c).

lllustration 1(Modified from the example in FRS 107)

ABC Ltd has a derivative asset (fair value of $100 million) and a derivative liability
(fair value of $80 million) with LMN Ltd that meet the offsetting criteria of FRS 32.42.
ABC Ltd also has a derivative asset (fair value of $40 million) and a derivative liability
(fair value of $30 million) with XYZ Ltd that do not meet the offsetting criteria of FRS
32.42 (because they can be set off only in the event of default). . .
In this case, the disclosure required by FRS 107 (para 13C) is as follows (all figures in
$'mil):

Financial assets

Counter-party (a) (b) (© () &)
LMN 100 (80) 20 — 20
XYZ 40 - 40 (30) 10

140 (80) 60 (30) 30
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